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Group Overview and Management Structure
History and ownership structure
Ultra Electronics (“Ultra”) was formed in 1993 to acquire the Electronic Systems division of Dowty Group plcand was listed on the London Stock Exchange in 1996. Since then, Ultra has grown both organically andthrough over fifty acquisitions.
On 16 August 2021, the Ultra Electronics Holdings plc Board of Directors unanimously recommended an offerby Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Limited1, a company incorporated in England and Wales and a wholly-ownedindirect subsidiary of Cobham Group Holdings Limited (“Cobham”), an entity controlled by funds managedby Advent International Corporation (“Advent International”) to acquire Ultra Electronics Holdings plc (the“Acquisition”). This offer, was subsequently approved by Ultra Electronics Holdings plc’s shareholders.
On 6 July 2022, the UK Government Business Secretary cleared the acquisition to proceed. The acquisitioncompleted on 1 August 2022 and Ultra Electronics Holdings plc was de-listed from the London Stock Exchangeand renamed Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited. The results of Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited and itssubsidiaries were consolidated into Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l. from 1 August 2022, the date ofacquisition. Consequently, the figures presented in these financial statements for the prior period reflect onlyfive months of Ultra trading, not the full 12 months from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 and are notfully comparable to the those for the year ended 31 December 2023.
This report includes the consolidated financial statements of Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l. (“the Company”)and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the period ended 31 December 2023.
Background on Advent International
Founded in 1984, Advent International is one of the largest and most experienced global private equity firms.With offices on four continents, it has a globally integrated team of more than 258 investment professionals,focused on buyouts and growth equity investments in five core sectors. Since initiating its private equitystrategy in 1989, Advent International has invested $72bn in over 400 private equity investments across 43countries and, as at 30 September 2023, managed $88bn in assets. The Advent International fund investingin Cobham and Ultra is Advent International GPE IX.
During the acquisition of Ultra, entities controlled by funds managed by Advent International made certainundertakings to regulatory authorities in the UK and continue to ensure full compliance with thesecommitments.

1 Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Limited is a 100% owned indirect subsidiary of Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l., theentity into which Ultra results are consolidated.
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Board of Managers
The composition of the Company’s Board of Managers is as follows:

Board Member Representation Background
Martin Barrow(Manager)
Appointed:
29 June 2023

Advent International
Advent Internationaltitle: Director, GlobalTax, based in Boston,United States

Martin joined Advent International in January 2021 andis responsible for overseeing Advent’s tax profile withparticular focus on mergers and acquisitions. Prior tojoining Advent, Martin was a partner with KPMG basedin New York having also worked for KPMG in London.During his career, Martin has spent 25 years advisinga variety of private equity and other funds.
Martin holds the degrees of Bachelor of BusinessAdministration, Masters of Professional Accounting andDoctor of Law from The University of Texas at Austin.In addition, he holds a Master of Laws from theUniversity of London with a concentration inInternational Business and Commercial Law.
Other than directorships of direct and indirect affiliatesof the Company, he has no other directorships.

Donald E. Whitt, Jr.(Manager) Advent International
Advent Internationaltitle: Vice President ofGlobal Tax, based inBoston, United States

Don joined Advent International in 2019 and isresponsible for the firm’s global tax function. Don hasover 25 years of international tax experience bothinhouse and in public accounting. Don previously heldtax leadership roles at Micron Technology Inc. and inthe tax planning group at Pfizer. Don holds a B.A. inEconomics, M.S. in Taxation, and a J.D. from theUniversity of Toledo and is a CPA.
Other than directorships of direct and indirect affiliatesof the Company, he has no other directorships.

Compliance statement
The Managers consider the annual report and financial statements to comply with all aspects of the Guidelinesfor Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity (the Walker Guidelines).
Overview of the Group’s business model
Ultra is a trusted partner in the key elements of mission-critical and intelligent systems. Ultra has itsheadquarters in the UK and four strategic business units operating primarily in the US, UK, Canada andAustralia.
Ultra employs around 4,400 people, with the largest number based in North America.
Ultra provides application-engineered solutions in the key elements of mission critical and intelligent systemsthat are on many of the world’s long-term defence programmes.
Ultra partners with the US Department of Defense (“DoD”) (DoD direct and indirect sales represented 46%(2022: 50%) of the Group’s full year revenue), the UK Ministry of Defence (“MoD”) (MoD direct and indirectsales represented 17% (2022: 12%) of the Group’s full year revenue) and other governments, aerospace,defence and critical infrastructure providers, both directly and through prime contractors.
Through innovative problem solving, and by using evolving technologies, Ultra engages directly with itscustomers to design mission-led solutions aligned to their future needs. Technology design is Ultra’s corecapability, used to detect, distil, direct and deploy data and information where it is needed most. In theperiod, Ultra and its customers invested an amount equal to 17.4% (2022: 13.2%) of Group revenue intoresearch and development, with the majority of customer funding coming from the DoD or US primecontractors.
Ultra’s core markets are the “five-eyes” nations (Australia, Canada, New Zealand, the UK and the US) in thefollowing sectors: maritime, C4ISR/EW (command, control, communications, computers, intelligence,



Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l.For the year ended 31 December 2023Consolidated Management report (continued)

4

surveillance, and reconnaissance / electronic warfare), military and commercial aerospace, security, nuclearenergy and industrial sensors.
During the year, Ultra operated across the following Strategic Business Units, each with differentiatedcapabilities and many leading market positions:
Maritime
The Maritime business provides leading multi-mission solutions to protect our “five-eyes” navies. Maritime’smarket-leading mission systems deliver dominance in the maritime domain. It’s broad portfolio of capabilitiesis operational on fleets across the allied navies worldwide. It develops advanced specialist sonar systems todeliver a tactical edge in the modern maritime and underwater battlespace. These provide critical operationaladvantages to Ultra’s defence customers across surface, sub-surface and unmanned platforms.
Intelligence and Communications
The Intelligence and Communications business delivers intelligence that informs decision-making in the mostchallenging environments through mission-critical, multi-domain communications, command and control,cyber security and electronic warfare. Its innovative solutions provide information advantage through theintelligent application of integrated technologies combined with through-life support service, ensuring thatthose operating in high-threat environments have the intelligence they need to carry out their missions safelyand effectively.
Precision Control Systems
The Precision and Control Systems business supplies high-integrity mission and safety-critical products andsystems for the most challenging situations, mainly in military and commercial aerospace. Its manned andunmanned vehicle systems and equipment improve vehicle reliability and performance, while reducing theburden on operators and maintainers.
Energy
The Energy business designs, manufactures, supplies and supports safety sensors and systems in nuclearand selected industrial applications worldwide. As a global leader in highly regulated markets, includingnuclear, oil and gas and space, it develops sensors, instrumentation and control systems for harshenvironments and mission- critical applications.
Development and Performance of the Business
Following the acquisition of Ultra, the business units have been encouraged to make decisions closer to thecustomer in order to allow for greater focus and to be able to unlock their full potential. Each unit has fullresponsibility for its own strategy, and financial and operational performance.
These units are supported by a lean corporate centre with responsibility for specialist Group Finance,Treasury, Tax and Legal matters, and some central IT provision.
Our strategy
The Group comprises a portfolio of highly strategic defence, security, critical detection & control businesses.Through innovative problem solving, using sustainable capabilities and evolving technologies, Ultra providesthe insight, technology and services its clients need to perform at their best and to help them make the worlda safer place.
Ultra plays an important role in all the countries in which it operates and intends to continue to serve as animportant supplier to the sector. Ultra’s core markets are the “five-eyes” allied nations (Australia, Canada,New Zealand, the UK and the US) and these will remain the key focus areas for Ultra in the future.  Ultrabelieves there are many exciting growth opportunities across the “five-eyes” nations and that Ultra’s focuson these nations as its core markets, as well as its operating and research and development footprint acrossthe “five-eyes” nations, positions the business very well for the future.
Following the acquisition by Cobham and the renewed focus on the businesses within the Group, Ultra’sstrategy continues to focus on how best to position each business unit to compete for greater market sharewhilst considering the views of key stakeholders including our employees, customers, suppliers, communitiesand investors across Ultra’s core markets. The Group remains committed to research and development byinvesting in both new products and enhancements to the current product base, to allow the Group to buildpositions where it has technical differentiation.
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Ultra takes a strategic approach to corporate responsibility and sustainability, recognising that long-termsuccess is not just about generating shareholder value but also about creating value for all the Group’sstakeholders. Managing external impacts, capitalising on opportunities and conducting business in aresponsible and sustainable way helps mitigate the Group’s principal risks and strengthen businessrelationships. Many of Ultra’s products and services provide important environmental and social benefits. Thedecisions and behaviours demonstrated by acting ethically, managing impacts, implementing innovativesolutions and engendering positive business relationships also promote and enhance our culture andreputation. Ultra has identified and created 2024 goals for each of its five key stakeholder groups.
In conjunction with the commitments made by Cobham to the UK Government and the strategic objectivesof the Group discussed above, the Group remains committed to:

 safeguarding and supporting the UK’s national security, including appropriate protections forsovereign UK capability, continuity of supply and critical capabilities in the UK, and appropriate boardcomposition and national security clearance arrangements;
 investing in Ultra’s UK workforce by protecting existing and creating new UK manufacturing andengineering jobs and apprenticeships and maintaining a UK headquarters;
 increasing investment in innovation, and research and development in the UK, including bycontinuing to develop UK-registered intellectual property rights for use in the UK and throughinvestment in new regional technology centres of excellence and funding of academic institutions;and
 accelerating Ultra’s Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) ambitions, including enhancedcommitments on net carbon emissions, diversity and the community investment programme.

Business review and key performance indicators
Key Performance Indicators (”KPIs”)
The following financial KPIs are used to measure the Group’s performance for continuing operations:

2023 2022$m $m*Revenue 1,182.9 510.2Adjusted EBITDA2 109.0 84.6Operating cash flow 131.7 (6.9)Net debt 2,040.3 2,313.3
*The results of Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries have been included in the consolidatedresults of the Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l. group from 1 August 2022, the date at which Cobham UltraSeniorCo S.à r.l. acquired the Ultra Electronics group. Consequently, the comparative numbers for the yearended 31 December 2022 in these financial statements reflect the five months of post-acquisition trading.
In addition, comparative numbers for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been re-presented to reflectthe final adjustments to the Purchase Price Allocation amounts following the business combination in 2022.Comparative numbers have also been re-presented to change the presentation of discontinued operationsrelated to the sale of the Forensic Technology business on a basis consistent with IFRS 5.
The following non-financial KPI is used to measure the Group’s performance:

2023 2022$m $m*Order book (at year end) 1,963 1,856
The order book, which represents the value of contractually committed orders still to be executed, isconsidered to be a KPI as it underpins future revenue of the Group. Given the diverse nature of the separatebusinesses and the different regulatory and business environments each operates in there are no other
2 Adjusted EBITDA is Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation, and as adjusted for non-underlyingtransactions such as the costs associated with the acquisition of Ultra, subsequent restructuring costs and non-underlying creditsarising from unwinding of fair value adjustments relating to the acquisition Purchase Price Allocation under IFRS 3.  Areconciliation from operating loss to Adjusted EBITDA is provided in note 11. Adjusted EBITDA in these financial statements willdiffer from EBITDA measures calculated using other bases, such as in financing agreements.
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meaningful non-financial KPIs which can be used to further assess the Group’s performance. Other non-financial KPIs are therefore not used by management at a Group level in order to understand thedevelopment, performance or position of the business although a range of metrics are used within each ofthe Group’s businesses as appropriate.
Revenue & Profit
Revenue from continuing operations of $1,182.9m (2022 restated: $510.2m). The 2022 comparativerepresents revenue generated for the five month period following the 1 August 2022 acquisition date ofUltra. On a like-for-like basis, there was a strong performance across the Group with 8% revenue growth,demonstrating the strength of the markets in which the Group operates, and the changes made since theacquisition of Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited.
Adjusted EBITDA (see footnote 2 on the p.5 for the definition of Adjusted EBITDA) was $109.0m (2022:$84.6m). The 2022 comparative represents EBITDA for the five month period following the 1 August 2022acquisition date of Ultra. Adjusted EBITDA is calculated excluding acquisition and other costs of $6.5m (2022:$50.4m).
Operating cash flow
Operating cash flow from continuing operations in the year was $131.7m (2022: cash outflow of $6.9m).The improvement in operating cash flow reflects the impact of non-underlying cash-outflows of $59.9m in2022 related to fees and integration costs incurred on the acquisition of Ultra on 1 August 2022, as well asa full 12 months of trading in the current year.
Cash and Net debt
Cash held at 31 December 2023 amounted to $375.2m (2022: $139.1m) net of overdrafts. Additional liquidityof $197m was available to the Group under the revolving credit facility (“RCF”) at 31 December 2023.
The RCF was utilised during the year to fund the ongoing working capital needs of the Group’s businessesbut was repaid in full during the year.
Net debt at 31 December 2023 was $2,040.3m (2022: $2,313.3m), consisting of first and second lien termloans, subordinated shareholder loan, drawn revolving credit facilities and bank overdrafts of $2,342.4m(2022: $2,387.7m), lease obligations of $50.8m (2022: $40.8m) and Government loans of $22.3m (2022:$23.9m) net of cash of $375.2m (2022: $139.1m). Net debt excluding lease obligations was $1,989.5m(2022: $2,272.5m).
Equity
The Managers do not recommend the payment of a dividend following their approval of the 2023 financialstatements. No dividends were paid during 2023 (2022: no dividends were paid).
During 2022 EPCs of $1,052.2m were issued and $263.4m were repaid, funded from Group cash.
Pensions Contributions
The Group made contributions to its sponsored UK defined benefit pension schemes of $35.4m (2022:$30.0m in the period 1 August 2022 to 31 December 2022). On an IAS 19 basis the net defined benefit assetwas $48.5m at the end of the year (2022: $12.8m asset).
Research and development and Capital Investment
The Group is committed to research and development by investing both in new products and enhancementsto the current product base, to allow the Group to build positions where it has technical differentiation. Ithas invested $62.2m in Group funded research and development activities during the period (2022: $22.5m).In addition, there was $151.5m of customer funded research and development spending in the period (2022:$47.5m). All company funded research and development expenditure is written off as it is incurred unlessand until the conditions for capitalisation are met. $7.8m was capitalised during the period (2022: $0.2m).The Group also invested $45.8m in physical and software assets for the long-term benefit of the Group(2022: $9.6m).
Events after the balance sheet date
The Company redeemed 315,529,899 equity preferred certificates in March 2024 for total consideration of$315.5m.
Future developments
Ultra’s differentiated technology is installed in many of the leading defence platforms that are expected tobe in operation for several decades, underpinning our core business. We are well-positioned in high-growth
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niches within our end-markets, with exposure to areas such as defence electronics and new space. Theseareas are experiencing increased investment providing a wide array of new business opportunities for Ultra.
Other matters
As previously disclosed, investigations associated with legacy conduct of business issues which occurredbefore the acquisition of Ultra Electronic Holdings plc are ongoing, and Ultra continues to cooperate with therelevant authorities. Provisions have been recognised with respect of these matters.
Principal risks and uncertainties
The Board of Managers has overall responsibility for ensuring an effective system of risk management,governance and internal controls. The Board of Managers reviews risk as part of its strategy review processand, as part of standard cadence in year, reviews the Group’s key and emerging risks, and the controls andindicators relied on to manage them.
The risk management framework underpins Ultra’s approach to managing risk effectively. The heart of therisk review and assessment process is embedded into Ultra’s strategic planning framework, which takes a10-year horizon for the formulation of our strategy and the identification and assessment of associated risks,in the form of changes to currently recognised risks and the proactive identification of emergent risks. Theprocess involves facilitated risk reviews with Business Units and functions, based on their plan assumptionsand scenarios. Emergent risks are identified both through testing the plans, with a focus on new factors suchas new operations or markets, and also from analysis of wider changes to the risk horizon and environment,such as the anticipated impacts of climate change. The overall risk framework then enables the consistentmeasurement, control and reporting of risks that can undermine the business model, future performance,solvency or liquidity of the Group and identifies:

 The causes and drivers of a risk and accountability for its management.
 Its potential consequences for Ultra through analysis of the likelihood and consequences, beforeand after the impact of specific controls.
 Analysis of the speed to impact of risks to aid prioritisation, recognising that it is often the pacewith which a risk crystallises that impairs a business’s ability to mitigate and control it.
 Articulation of the specific controls and warning indicators in place or being funded andimplemented to manage and mitigate a risk.

Day-to-day ownership of risk sits with businesses and function management.
The Board of Managers consider the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business to comprise thefollowing:
Defence Sector Cycle Risk
Defence spending by governments can fluctuate cyclically depending on economic conditions, change ofgovernment policy or political considerations, budgetary constraints, and changes to national and globalthreats.
Lower defence spending by the Group’s major customers in a down cycle could have a material impact onthe Group’s future results and financial conditions.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 The Group is geographically spread across the USA, UK and international defence markets.
 Investment in technology to help us access high growth segments of the market.
 Long term projects, which help mitigate against short-term changes in the defence cycle.

Comment, changes and outlook
Ultra’s focus is the defence markets, where the Group believes we can grow at good returns on capital inthe medium and long term. Ultra has a degree of tolerance to defence cycle risk and are not seeking todiversify away from the defence market. However, we do seek to have a diverse customer and programmebase, which provides resilience.
As mentioned above, we see growth in our markets over the medium term, driven by the increasing threatpresented by near peer countries.
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Bid and Contract Risk
Across Ultra’s businesses, a major proportion of revenues are generated through contracts which are long-term in nature and subject to complex terms and conditions. Contracts include commitments relating topricing, quality and safety, technical and customer requirements and product servicing.
A failure to fully recognise contract risks or to anticipate technical challenges and estimate costs accuratelyat the outset of a contract can lead to unexpected liabilities, increased outturn costs and reduced profitability.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 New and improved business bid and contract management processes.
 Legal reviews of contract terms and conditions.
 Contract-specific risk assessments.
 Clear delegation of authority/escalation criteria for approvals.
 Reviews of contract performance.

Comment, changes and outlook
Balanced risk appetite, with additional controls investment where justified.
We have continued to invest in specialist resources in commercial and legal spheres, improving our bidcompetency and ability to align new contracts with Ultra’s risk appetite across business divisions.
Programme Risk
Many of the programmes entered into by Ultra are complex, long term and subject to various performanceconditions which must be adhered to throughout the programme. Poor management of such programmesbrings risks related to:

 Delays in product development or launch schedules.
 Failure to meet customer specifications or predict technical problems.
 Inability to deliver to contract terms.
 Inability to manage programme costs or forecast accurately.

Potential impact
Ineffective programme management could result in damage to customer relationships or cancellation of acontract, resulting in claims for loss and reputational damage. Poor performance against a contract couldalso undermine the Group’s ability to win future contracts and could result in cost overruns and significantlylower returns than expected.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 Embedded programme management in each business unit.
 Formal review and escalation framework.
 Review and approval of key programmes.
 ‘Lessons learned’ and best practice sharing.
 Inspection of programmes by customers.

Comment, changes and outlook
Risk averse appetite for failures on programme management drives investment in strong controls for a keybusiness process. Controls improvements are impacting to reduce this risk, but this is in the context of short-term challenges for programmes over retention and recruitment of specialist resources.
Geo-political Risk
With our focus on the defence sector, geo-political factors could lead to an unfavourable business climatefor defence spending or restrict the access of overseas suppliers to national markets.
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Political change in a major end customer country such as the USA could impact revenue flows fromcancellation of defence programmes or reduction in future programmes for political reasons, or a change ofsupplier selection conditions on defence contracts.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 The Group proactively monitors the political environments affecting our key markets.
 We develop and maintain strong relationships with customers, governments and stakeholdersdifferentiating through our domain expertise.
 Diversified operations with local manufacturing in our target market countries.
 Diversification of end customers in multiple countries.
 Long-term nature of defence contracts and domain expertise.

Comment, changes and outlook
Balanced risk appetite, with additional controls investment where justified.
Risk is mitigated in the short to medium term with increasing political prioritisation of defence capability bymultiple governments in the current period of global political instability and events, including the Russianinvasion of Ukraine.
Delivering Change
The ability to continuously improve and transform our business to deliver objectives in complex technologymarkets is vital for business success. Effective delivery of major or concurrent change programmes withminimal effect on business as usual is a key component of Ultra’s drive to deliver our strategy and supportingoperational improvement.
Transformation programmes may not be delivered on time or costs may increase. The expected benefits ofchange from programmes may not be realised. Under-resourcing may lead to management distraction frombusiness as usual. Structural change may impact employee morale.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 Change programme management procedures and controls.
 Robust governance around all programmes, including strong steering committees, standardreporting and executive level sponsorship.
 Investment in dedicated professional transformation resource and leadership.

Comment, changes and outlook
Balanced risk appetite, with additional controls investment where justified; increased current investmentreflects scale and scope of current change activity.
Security and Cyber Risks
As a key partner to our customers and end customers, Ultra has custody of classified information andcustomer and its own intellectual property. In circumstances where the incidence and sophistication of cybersecurity crime continues to rise, the effective management and protection of information and Ultra’s securityand IT systems is necessary to prevent the compromise of secure information, intellectual property or ourpeople’s personal data.
Reputational damage to Ultra as a highly regarded partner in the event of compromise of classifiedinformation or IP. This could lead to loss of business opportunities with removal of government approval towork on classified programmes.
Regulatory action or civil/contractual penalties could result from loss of personal data, a partner’s IP orclassified information.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 Investment into Corvid Protect, Ultra’s in-house specialist cyber security resource



Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l.For the year ended 31 December 2023Consolidated Management report (continued)

10

 Intellectual property is addressed in the bid and contract management process and protectedthrough information security policies, procedures and systems
 Security clearance processes are in place for all employees
 Established physical security processes are implemented at all sites
 Defence business governance framework in place
 Independent security reviews by defence departments and customers

Comment, changes and outlook
Focus on investment in strong controls for a key enabling capability; risk averse.
Governance, Compliance & Internal Controls
In common with other businesses in our sector, the Group operates in a highly regulated environment acrossmultiple jurisdictions and is subject to a range of regulatory, governance and compliance requirements. Newor retrospective compliance changes (for example in Tax) or a failure in the framework of internal controlscould result in penalties, liabilities or reputational damage.
Key impacts from specific relevant controls/ events, all of which carry the potential for reputational damageare:

 Financial rules and standards compliance – failure to comply in key areas such as revenuerecognition could result in adjustments that undermine results.
 Breach of defence contractor financial compliance rules in a key market, such as the USA or UK,could lead to financial/participation penalties and or reputational damage.
 Trade compliance – failure to comply with export controls or defence specific requirements, such asUS ITAR controls, could result in regulatory action and penalties.
 Bid and contract requirements for some government and defence contracts introduce “Offset”compliance obligations requiring special national investment or operations constraints. Whiletypically very long term by nature, failure to comply could lead eventually to regulatory action orpenalties.
 Anti-bribery and corruption (ABC) – failure to comply with multiple jurisdiction rules in relation topublic sector contracts directly or through intermediaries could result in regulatory action andpenalties.
 Tax compliance – retrospective regulatory changes could lead to significant unforeseen liabilities.

Mitigation commentary/examples
 Corporate and business level controls policies, procedures, training and systems
 Internal expert corporate teams in key functional areas
 Built-in IT system controls
 Controls and compliance reviews by management and internal audit
 Specialist advisers

Comment, changes and outlook
As an international defence supplier, investment in strong compliance controls is key to our standing as aresponsible and reputable supplier to governments; risk averse.
In 2023 we continued to invest in professional expertise and capabilities for guidance and oversight in ourkey industry compliance areas, including trade compliance, defence contractor compliance, offsetmanagement and ABC. This investment has been bolstered by the recruitment during the year of a ChiefCompliance Officer with responsibility for enhancing across the group.
2023 has seen continued investment in professional roles and capabilities for guidance and oversight in ourkey industry compliance areas, including trade compliance, defence contractor compliance and ABC. While
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recognising the increasing demands of the compliance environment, the assessment of the net risk asreducing reflects the marked improvements in our compliance controls framework.
Supply Chain
Specialist materials, components and power and utilities costs increase materially and/or shortages oroutages are triggered by post Covid-19 supply chain issues and logistics movement capacity challenges tomeet demand as global economies recover.
Increased costs from supply chain and energy cost inflation, some of which may not able to be passed onunder contractual terms, could impact profits. Shortages or logistic delays for materials and components postCovid-19 or from emergent sanctions in response to the invasion of Ukraine may impair delivery timeframes,leading to penalties.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 Proactive management of sourcing and stock levels of critical materials and components
 Use of contractual terms or renegotiation to reflect increasing cost base in pricing by agreementwith customers
 Supply chain analysis following events in Ukraine indicate no direct supply chain implications

Comment, changes and outlook
Risk-averse stance supports investment in standardisation, controls and tools to proactively manage supplychain risks. We expect this risk to continue to stabilise in 2024.
Specialist Recruitment and Retention
With our focus on the defence sector, geo-political factors could lead to an unfavourable business climatefor defence spending or restrict the access of overseas suppliers to national markets.
Highly competitive labour markets as economies recover from Covid-19, is driving specialist resourcing gapsin our operations which, if enduring, could start to impact customer programme delivery.
Mitigation commentary/examples

 Embedding of specialist HR talent acquisition function to directly address Ultra’s recruitmentpriorities
 Proactive strategies to retain critical specialist employees targeted for individual locations andcircumstances

Comment, changes and outlook
The quality of our people is a key asset and differentiator for Ultra and, recognising the increasinglychallenging labour market conditions, we are investing in our recruitment capabilities and retention measuresto protect and enhance our specialist capabilities for customer delivery.
Financial risk management
The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include credit risk, liquidity risk, interestrate, cash flow risk and foreign currency exchange rate risk.
The Group’s policies seek to limit the adverse effects of these risks on the financial performance of the Group.This includes the use of foreign currency financial instruments, debt and other instruments. The Group doesnot trade in financial instruments.
Credit risk
The Group has policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before contracts aresigned and sales are made. The businesses also monitor existing customer accounts on an ongoing basisand take appropriate action where necessary to minimise any potential credit risk. Cash and bank balancesare held with banks that have been assigned satisfactory credit ratings by international credit rating agencies.
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Liquidity risk
The Group retains sufficient cash to ensure it has available funds for operations and planned expansions andhas access to revolving credit facilities under a Group banking arrangement as required.
Interest rate cash flow risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. Interest bearing assets includecash and bank balances and other receivables which earn interest at a floating rate. The Group hasborrowings with a range of maturities at floating rates of interest. The Group monitors its exposure tomovements in interest rates to bring greater stability and certainty to its borrowing costs, with the policybeing to assess the proportion of borrowings that are fixed and floating in the context of prevailing marketconditions. During the period, the Group did not use derivative financial instruments to manage interest ratecosts.
Foreign currency exchange rate risk
The Group’s aim is to reduce, or eliminate, whenever practical, foreign exchange transaction risk. The USdollar/sterling exchange rate is the most significant exposure, together with a number of other, smallerforeign exchange transaction exposures. All foreign exchange hedging transactions are approved underdelegated authority from the Managers. A number of financial instruments, such as forward rate contracts,are used to manage transactional foreign exchange exposure.
Going concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, its financialposition, financial risk management objectives, details of its financial instruments and derivative activities,and its exposures to credit, liquidity and cash flow risk are described in the Management Report. In addition,note 27 to the Group Financial Statements include the Group’s objectives, policies and processes formanaging its capital, financial risk management, details of financial instruments and hedging activities, andits exposure to credit liquidity and other risks.
In applying the going concern basis, the Managers have considered the Group cash flow projections andassessed the robustness of the forecast through sensitivity to model severe but plausible downside scenarioswhich assume forecast net cash inflows from business operations reduce by 25% for the forecast period toreflect the combined impact of potential changes to key assumptions such as reduced cash conversion,revenue growth rate and gross margin. At the year end, the Group has considerable financial resources withliquidity available on the Balance Sheet from its cash resources, with $375.2m cash balances net ofoverdrafts. As at 31 March 2024, reflecting the most recent data available at the time of approving thesefinancial statements, the Group has $83.2m of cash on the balance sheet and the RCF is fully drawn including$40m utilised for bank guarantees, consequently the total liquidity available to the Group is $83.2m.
There is a springing financial covenant applicable to the Revolving Credit Facility that is tested, subject tocertain conditions, quarterly from 30 September 2023 if the facility, net of cash balances, is over 40% drawn.The covenant requires that the leverage ratio of senior secured net debt to EBITDA of the Group, beingEBITDA as adjusted to give pro-forma effect to investments, acquisitions, dispositions, mergers,amalgamations, consolidations, disposed operations and allowable pro-forma cost savings and synergies,does not exceed 9.10:1. If the amount drawn on the facility, net of cash balances, is below 40% there is nocovenant test applicable. The springing financials covenant test conditions were not met as at 31 December2023.
The Group has a mix of shorter and longer term programmes and a number of leading market positions withcustomers, including Governments and Primes, across different geographical areas. As a consequence, theManagers believe that the Group is ordinarily well placed to manage its business risks successfully. TheManagers have reviewed detailed cash flow projections to the end of December 2025 and have applied stresstests on its cash position. These include severe but plausible downside scenarios which assume forecast netcash inflows from business operations are reduced by 25% for the forecast period. In this scenario theManagers have confirmed that the Group would be able to operate and service the senior debt within thelevel of its currently available funding over the next 12 months without breaching the covenants in place.
Accordingly, after making enquiries, the Managers have concluded at the time of approving the financialstatements that it is their expectation that the Company and the Group as a whole have adequate financialresources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue toadopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group Financial Statements.
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Employees
At Ultra our employee goal is to ‘create a dynamic, inspiring and inclusive work environment that attracts,develops, engages and retains the best diverse talent. In 2023 we continued to invest in the people agendawhilst also ensuring that we retained and engaged critical talent throughout the lengthy Acquisition processin a buoyant external talent market. We accomplished this through delivering a number of actions within thefollowing six key strategic HR Pillars:
1. Building the Talent Pipeline
Ensuring we have the right talent in the right place at the right time has been central to our talent acquisitionagenda in 2023. We have significantly improved our strategic workforce planning which is reviewed by theexecutive committee in the quarterly business reviews. As a result of winning a number of bids on programsthe demand for talent growth has been strong in 2023 and we invested in our in-house talent acquisitionteam to support this, and we continued to invest in recruitment tools to support this. Additionally, we haveimproved our on-boarding process having completed LEAN sprints on our process and started to work on avirtual on boarding program utilising gamification. We completed an audit of our recruitment process in 2022to ensure that it enables us to appeal to the broadest and most diverse talent pools and have also started toput in place accessibility guides for candidates interviewing at our sites.
2. Compelling Reward & Recognition
In 2023 we had to be agile in our compensation and benefit programs to ensure we retained and motivatedour employees throughout the acquisition process. In August 2022 as a result of the acquisition a numberof Ultra employees benefitted from the £35 share purchase through the legacy Ultra long-term incentiveprogram and employee share schemes in place at the time.
In addition to the above, a retention payment program was put in place to retain critical leadership andfunctional talent through the acquisition process which was paid out 90 days post completion. This provedextremely successful in retaining talent with a very small number of exits in this population over the lastyear.
We have continued to run our annual bonus program with the majority of employees across the Group beingincluded in a bonus plan. In 2022 we continued our efforts to harmonise the opportunity by levels to enablebetter mobility of talent. The bonus scheme is based on performance against profit and cash measures (85%of the opportunity) with an individual performance (15% of the opportunity) enabling us to differentiateawards for higher performance. With regards to the individual component, employees are set four to eightspecific objectives that are aligned to the ‘Objective and Key results’ (“OKRs”) of the business or function,and these are reviewed throughout the year but with a formal review in June and December. A rating isgiven for this, which is calibrated and then used in deriving bonus outcomes and as an input to salaryincreases.
2023 was the third year of our ASPIRE values recognition program which enables peer to peer recognitionfor performance against our Agile, Sharing, Performing, Innovating, Rewarding and Empowering values.
3. Building leadership and functional capability
In 2022 our first four cohorts (c.80 participants) completed their 18 month STAR (Self, Thought, Achievethrough others and Results) leadership program with an in person module in Q2 held at the Duke campus inNorth Carolina. As a result of the success of this program we launched the second set of cohorts in Q3 of2022 with a module again on the Duke campus and with a completion date for the program of Q3 2023.
Our Manager fundamentals program aimed at the 700+ people managers across Ultra continued withmodules on recruitment and retention and leadership complexity.
Mandatory training was allocated and completed by all employees covering Code of Conduct, Anti-bribery,IT / data security and Harassment. Additionally, we increased the number of health and safety trainingmodules that needed to be completed by employees.
As part of our ‘Aspirations, Capability and Engagement (ACE)’ discussions we identify individual training anddevelopment actions for individuals and support them with this training. Additionally, all employees at Ultrahave been given access to LinkedIn Learning with the content of thousands of courses being made availablethrough our myHR learning system where in our weekly newsletter we share some of the most popular/usefulcourses to drive adoption rates.
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4. Succeeding with diversity
In 2022 we published our first Diversity & Equity Index report highlighting all of the work that we are doingin this space. Our focus has been on three areas:

 Human Moments: focussed around creating the right conversations across the Group. We haveinvited external speakers in to engage in discussions with us around different topics and opened thisup to all employees to attend the virtual sessions. We have continued to work with our Women andBIPOC (Black Indigenous People of Colour) employee resource groups sharing issues and ideas onwhat we can do to make Ultra an even better place for these groups to work. In 2022 we continuedwith the roll out of Neuro-diversity awareness training for our senior leader group.
 Human Applications: we introduced our Global DE&I Policy committing to a number of thingsincluding equity, diversity and inclusion in the workplace; creating a working environment free ofbullying, harassment, victimization and unlawful discrimination; protecting dignity and respect forall; and where individual differences and the contributions of all employees are recognized andvalued.  We have continued to develop our facilities in our sites so that they are in accessible andusable for all our colleagues and updated our dress code policy to simply ‘dress appropriately’. Wealso continued the work on equity in progression and opportunity looking at how roles are designed,role descriptions and our interview and assessment process. Our successful strategies for successprogram aimed at senior and high potential women talent at Ultra continued with further modulesfor existing participants and a new program launched for 60 new participants. This program hasover 150 participants within it now 94% of the talent has been retained and 25% of the talent hasbeen promoted since being on the program. In 2021/22 we also committed to disability confidentin the UK and signed up to the women in defence charter.
 Individual humans: we have increased our analysis of who we are within Ultra with the benefit ofour myHR (Workday) platform. As diversity, equity and inclusion encompass so many differentdimensions, we selected The Global Diversity & Inclusion Benchmark as a powerful enabler ofstrategic conversations and an effective planning tool to help us deliver our diversity, equity andinclusion objectives. We have shown strong progress year on year against the baseline in 2020.

The Group’s current diversity statistics for year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out below:

2023 Male Female Not Declared Total
Managers (Board ofManagers) 2 - - 2
Senior Managers 92 28 - 120
Other Employees 2,840 1,147 10 3,997
Total 2,934 1,175 10 4,119

2022 Male Female Not Declared Total
Managers (Board ofManagers) 2 - - 2
Senior Managers 93 35 - 128
Other Employees 2,980 1,299 2 4,281
Total 3,075 1,334 2 4,411

5. Creating a winning culture
We have continued to operate a hybrid working arrangement for applicable roles that with remote employeesideally working two to three days from the office to foster greater connectivity, collaboration, innovation andto assist with employee wellbeing. Our values recognition program continues to drive awareness of andbehaviour supporting our ASPIRE values and they are also an integral part of our performance managementprocess. Our Employee Assistance programs support employees with wellbeing (health and financial) inaddition to all businesses promoting their own wellbeing agendas.
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6. Transform our operating model
In 2023 our focus has been on supporting the organisational changes following the Acquisition. This hascentred on giving greater day to day autonomy to each business unit. This has now been successfullycompleted such that each unit now operates on a standalone basis.
Employee Consultation and Involvement with Management
As part of the Acquisition, the Advent team, the Group’s senior executives and their advisors embarked on adiscovery tour across all of our key locations immediately upon taking control of the Group. These meetingsenabled the Advent team to get to understand the business through senior leadership team discussions andalso to speak to the broader employee population base.
Strategic Business Unit (SBU) leadership team regularly hold ‘all hands’ / ‘townhall’ meetings for employeesto communicate business performance and priorities and to engage in Q&A sessions.
We continue to support our Speak Up platform which enables employees to confidentially raise issues thatthey feel should be investigated by management.
Social, community, human rights and environment
Social Value is the long-term, sustainable improvement for society that can be gained by promoting positivesocial, economic, and environmental impact.
A Positive Force
Ultra’s ‘A Positive Force’ framework sets measurable objectives to develop these critical areas.
These include four pillars:

 Protecting our Planet
 Supporting our People
 Giving Back
 Doing the Right Thing

Our investment in local communities across the Group demonstrates our goals of conducting our business inan ethical, safe, and sustainable way.
Our policies on delivering sustainability and Social Value are closely linked to the United Nations SustainableDevelopment Goals (SDGs) – these address global challenges across environment, social and economicsubjects. Volunteering, Matched Funding, Charity engagement and STEM outreach are key components ofSocial Value activity that engages our employees, clients and suppliers, and builds the Ultra brand.
Ultra recognises that its operations, products and services have an impact on the environment. Thebusinesses endeavour to improve efficiency in use of raw materials, energy and natural resources throughproduct design, operations and supply chain management and logistics. A confirmation statement is obtainedannually from each business unit to confirm that the relevant business has adopted a formal Environmental,Social and Governance (ESG) policy relevant to that business, including matters such as workplace safety,environmental management and product safety. Confirmation is also made by that statement that therelevant business is in compliance with all environmental laws and all environmental permits necessary inconnection with the ownership and operation of the business.
Forces Charter
An important element of our community commitment is our Forces Charter: ONE Ultra Forces Charter. Weat Ultra endeavour in our business dealings to uphold the key principles of our Charter, which are:

 To recognise, respect and show gratitude of Service, by honouring the commitment and sacrificesmade by the Forces Community
 To take positive measures to prevent any disadvantage of the Forces community
 To recognise that special treatment may be appropriate, especially for the injured or bereaved.

For UK Government departments and their industrial partners, Social Value underpins post-Covid recoverywith associated sustainability and prosperity goals. As partner to the UK Government, we have supportedthe Social Value initiative and our 2023 activities have contributed to the following associated themes:
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 Equal opportunities 

 Wellbeing 

 Covid-19 recovery 

 Tackling economic inequality 

 Fighting climate change  

 

Human Rights and Bullying 

Ultra believes in our obligation to respect core human rights, protect individuals against abuse of human 

rights and take positive action to facilitate enjoyment of basic human rights. This means respecting and 

observing equality and human rights legislation and introducing policies that promote rights and freedoms 
for all. We value and encourage diversity within our workforce and our talent acquisition pipelines support 

increased representation and inclusion. Ultra has zero-tolerance of bullying, harassment, and discrimination 

towards workers, including all forms of physical, verbal or psychological abuse and we expect our suppliers 
to adopt the same stance. We work collaboratively with our suppliers to ensure that like our own employees 

and contingent workers, theirs are protected from bullying, harassment and discrimination and they and their 
supply chain can compete fairly and have an equal chance of success. 

 

Signed on behalf of the board 

 

 

 

Donald E. Whitt, Jr 

Manager 

29 April 2024
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Independent auditor's report

To the Shareholder of
Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.El r.l.
2-4 rue Beck
L-1222 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.El r.1and its subsidiaries
(the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of other comprehensive expense, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (the "Law of
23 July 2016") and with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs") as adopted for Luxembourg by the
"Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier" ("CSSF"). Our responsibilities under the Law of
23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the "responsibilities
of the "reviseur d'entreprises agree" for the audit of the consolidated financial statements" section of our
report. We are also independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ("IESBA Code") as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information
The Board of Managers is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the consolidated management report Consolidated Financial Statements,
Management Report and Report of the Reviseur d'entreprises agreebut does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our report of the "reviseur d'entreprises agree" thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. - 17 -
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Managers and those charged with governance for the consolidatedfinancial statements
The Board of Managers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union and for such internal
control as the Board of Managers determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Managers is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Managers either intends to liquidate theGroup or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the "reviseur d'entreprises agree" for the audit of the consolidated financialstatements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
"reviseur d'entreprises agree" that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- 18 -
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Managers.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Managers' use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the "reviseur
d'entreprises agree" to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our report of the "reviseur d'entreprises agree". However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The consolidated management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Other Matter
The consolidated financial statements of Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.c3r.1.for the year ended 31 December
2022 were audited by Deloitte, Cabinet de revision agree who expressed an unqualified opinion on
30 June 2023.

Ernst & Young
Societe anonyme

Cabinet de revision agree--
Luxembourg, 29 April 2024

- 19 -A member firm of Ernst & YounQ Global Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
Year ended 31December2023

Year ended 31December20223
Continuing operations Note $m $m
Revenue 4 1,182.9 510.2Cost of sales (882.3) (383.2)Gross profit 300.6 127.0
Other income 9.6 -Operating expenses (227.1) (80.6)Acquisition and other items 6 (6.5) (50.4)Acquired assets related amortisation and impairment 6 (211.8) (96.5)Operating (loss)/profit (135.2) (100.5)
Gain on disposal 9 195.0 -Finance income 7 34.3 2.1Finance costs 8 (257.0) (96.4)Loss before tax from continuing operations (162.9) (194.8)Tax 10 82.0 50.6Loss for the period from continuing operations (80.9) (144.2)
Discontinued operations(Loss)/Profit for the period from discontinued operations 9a (1.2) 4.7
Loss for the year (82.1) (139.5)
Attributable to:Owners of the parent (82.0) (139.5)Non-controlling interests (0.1) -(82.1) (139.5)
All of the profit from discontinued operations is attributable to the owners of the parent.
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3 The results of Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are consolidated into Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l. from 1August 2022, the date of acquisition, consequently these financial statements reflect only five months of Ultra trading, not the full 12months from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

Note
Year ended 31December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mLoss for the year (82.1) (139.5)

Other comprehensive expenseItems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes 23 (2.6) (14.5)Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 10 0.6 2.2(2.0) (12.3)
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:Hedging reserve 3.8 -Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations4 (51.1) (0.1)(47.3) (0.1)
Other comprehensive loss for the period, net of income tax (49.3) (12.4)
Total comprehensive loss for the period (131.4) (151.9)
Attributable to:Owners of the parent (131.3) (151.9)Non-controlling interests (0.1) -(131.4) (151.9)
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4 The exchange difference on translation of foreign operations is mainly driven by transactions in Great British Pounds £ andCanadian Dollars $ in the UK and Canada respectively.
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As at 31 December 2023 2023 20225

Note $m $m(restated)AssetsNon-current assetsGoodwill 12 1,004.5 1,050.4Other intangible assets 12 1,809.1 2,077.8Property, plant and equipment 13 143.6 118.6Right-of-use assets 14 42.1 38.0Retirement benefit assets 23 48.5 12.8Trade and other receivables 19 14.9 12.9Derivative financial instruments 0.3 -3,063.0 3,310.5Current assetsInvestments in financial assets 15 1.4 4.5Inventories 18 138.6 150.8Trade and other receivables 19 266.3 280.7Current tax assets 13.5 16.4Derivative financial instruments 27 10.8 -Cash and cash equivalents 20 558.6 168.2Assets held for sale 9 - 274.1989.2 894.7
Total assets 4,052.2 4,205.2
LiabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesTrade and other payables 21 (347.8) (330.2)Current tax liabilities (0.2) (5.4)Derivative financial instruments 27 (4.8) (23.3)Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 22 (365.6) (127.0)Provisions 24 (29.0) (30.5)Liabilities held for sale 9 - (44.1)(747.4) (560.5)Non-current liabilitiesOther payables 21 (23.9) (13.8)Deferred tax liabilities 17 (384.1) (491.0)Derivative financial instruments 27 (8.5) -Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 22 (2,233.3) (2,354.5)Provisions 24 (11.8) (12.2)(2,661.6) (2,871.5)
Total liabilities (3,409.0) (3,432.0)
Net assets 643.2 773.2

5 Certain balances as at 31 December 2022 have been updated to reflect the finalisation of the Purchase Price Allocation in 2023, inaccordance with IFRS 3. See Note 2 Material account policies and Note 12 Intangible assets for further details.
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As at 31 December 2023  
  2023     20226     
 

Note 
$m $m 

(restated) 

Equity     
Share capital 25 2.6 2.6 
Share premium 25 135.1 133.7 
Equity preferred certificates 25 788.8 788.8 
Hedging reserve 27 3.8 - 
Translation reserve 25 (51.2) (0.1) 
Retained earnings  (236.0) (151.8) 

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent  643.1 773.2 
Non-controlling interests in equity  0.1 - 

Total equity   643.2 773.2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements were 
approved by the Board of Managers on 29 April 2024 and signed on its behalf by:  

 

 

 
Donald E. Whitt, Jr    
Manager 

                                                                 
6  Certain balances as at 31 December 2022 have been updated to reflect the finalisation of the Purchase Price Allocation in 2023, in 
accordance with IFRS 3.  See Note 2 Material account policies and Note 12 Intangible assets for further details. 
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

Sharecapital Sharepremium
Equitypreferredcertificates Hedgingreserve Translationreserve Retainedearnings

Totalattributableto owners ofthe parent
Non-controllinginterests Total equityNote $m $m $m $m $m $m

Balance at 1 January 2022 - - - - - - - - -- -Loss for the period - - - - - (139.5) (139.5) - (139.5)Other comprehensive income/ (loss) - - - - (0.1) (12.3) (12.4) - (12.4)Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the period - - - - (0.1) (151.8) (151.9) - (151.9)-Issue of Ordinary shares 25 2.6 133.7 - - - - 136.3 - 136.3Issue of equity preferredcertificates 25 - - 1,052.2 - - - 1,052.2 - 1,052.2Repayment of equitypreferred certificates 25 - - (263.4) - - - (263.4) - (263.4)Balance at 31 December2022 2.6 133.7 788.8 - (0.1) (151.8) 773.2 - 773.2
Loss for the year - - - - (81.0) (81.0) 0.1 (80.9)Other comprehensive income/ (loss) - - - 3.8 (51.0) (2.0) (49.2) - (49.2)Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - - 3.8 (51.0) (83.0) (130.2) 0.1 (130.1)
Discontinued operations 9 - - - - (0.1) (1.2) (1.3) - (1.3)Issue of Ordinary shares 25 - 1.4 - - - - 1.4 - 1.4Balance at 31 December2023 2.6 135.1 788.8 3.8 (51.2) (236.0) 643.1 0.1 643.2

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Year ended31December2023
Year ended31December2022Note $m $mUnderlying operating cash flow before movements in workingcapital 26 81.7 39.6Decrease in inventories 3.0 (2.7)Increase in receivables 5.4 (21.4)Increase in payables 59.4 55.9Underlying cash generated by operations 149.5 71.4Non-underlying cash flows 0.3 (59.9)Income taxes paid (18.1) (4.6)Net cash from operating activities – continuing operations 131.7 6.9Net cash from operating activities – discontinued operations (7.9) 11.5Net cash from operating activities 123.8 18.4

Cash flows from investing activitiesInterest received 7 5.6 1.4Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash received 9 - (2,922.4)Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 13 (43.7) (8.3)Acquisition of other intangible assets 12 (9.2) (1.5)Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.3 1.9Proceeds from business divestments 9 560.9 -Tax paid on investing activities (30.1) -Net cash from investing activities - continuing operations 487.8 (2,928.9)Net cash used in investing activities – discontinued operations (1.0) (0.2)Net cash from investing activities 486.8 (2,929.1)
Liabilities arising from financing activitiesProceeds from issue of Ordinary share capital 25 1.4 136.3Proceeds from issue of equity preference certificates 25 - 1,052.2Redemption of equity preference certificates 25 - (263.4)Loan arrangement fees 22 - (103.0)Repayment of borrowings 22 (459.8) (134.0)Proceeds from borrowings 22 296.4 2,373.2Principal payment on leases 22 (6.3) (4.4)Interest paid (154.5) (1.8)Net cash arising from financing activities - continuing operations (322.8) 3,055.1Net cash arising from financing activities - discontinued operations (0.4) (0.5)Net cash arising from financing activities (323.2) 3,054.6
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 287.4 143.9Exchange movements (51.3) (4.8)Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year 139.1 -Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20 375.2 139.1

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1 Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS as adoptedby the European Union
The consolidated financial statements of Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l. (hereafter the “Company” or the “ParentCompany”) and all its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023were authorised for issue by the Board of Managers on 29 April 2024 and the consolidated statement of financialposition was signed on the Board’s behalf by Donald E. Whitt, Jr.
The Company was incorporated on 5 August 2021 as Société à responsabilité limitée in accordance withLuxembourg Law and its principal activity is that of a holding company. The Company is registered with theTrade and Companies Register of Luxembourg with the number B258134 and has its registered office at 2-4 RueBeck L-1222 Luxembourg.
On 1 August 2022, Ultra Electronics Holdings plc (“Ultra”) was acquired by the Group. Ultra is a trusted partnerin the key elements of mission-critical and intelligent systems. Ultra operates mainly as a Tier 3 (sub-system)and occasionally a Tier 2 systems provider, in the Maritime, C4ISR/EW (Command, Control, Communications,Computers (C4) Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (ISR)/Electronic Warfare (EW)), military andcommercial aerospace, nuclear energy and industrial sensors markets. Ultra’s core markets are the ‘five-eyes’nations; the USA, Canada, UK, Australia and New Zealand. Ultra’s cutting-edge processing capabilities will thendistil these data points into relevant, often mission-critical parcels of information. Ultra use secure, encryptedforms of proprietary communication to direct the parcels of information between the data source to users atcentral locations and operators at the tactical edge where Ultra’s suite of competencies will help identify the mostappropriate response to deploy. Ultra is also a world leader in automated ballistic identification through ourForensic Technology business, a trusted and strategic partner for criminal justice agencies around the world inhelping with the prevention and solving of gun crime.
The Group is ultimately owned by funds managed by Advent International Corporation, a global private equityinvestor. Information on the Group’s structure is provided in note 16. The Group’s financial year starts on thefirst day of January and ends on the last day of December of each Year, except for the first financial period from5 August 2021 to 31 December 2021 which was unaudited.
2 Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial ReportingStandards as adopted by the EU and interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS”).
These consolidated financial statements are presented in US Dollars because that is the currency of the primaryeconomic environment in which the Group operates.  All figures are rounded to the nearest $0.1million unlessotherwise stated.
The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periodspresented in these group financial statements.
Judgements made by the Board of Managers, in the application of these accounting policies that have significanteffect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next yearare discussed in note 3.
Certain comparative amounts in the Consolidated Income Statement have been re-presented, in respect of thefollowing transactions, to achieve a more appropriate presentation as required by IFRS 5: Non-current assetsheld for sale and discontinued operations:

 Sale of Forensic Technology on 1 September 2023.  Refer to note 9 for more information.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Restatement of comparative financial information as at 31 December 2022
As required by IFRS 3, the restatement arising from the finalisation of the purchase price allocation exercise shallbe applied retrospectively on the acquisition date. The finalisation of the measurement (purchase priceallocation), within the following 12 months period, of the transaction occurring in 2022 has concluded with amaterial impact on the Group financial statements as of 31 December 2022. The information in the comparativecolumn (31 December 2022) of the consolidated financial statement of the Group corresponding to the balancesreported in the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2022 is restated as follows (these impactshave also been restated in the notes 5, 12, 17 and 24):

 Increasing provisions by $4.0 million and deferred tax liabilities by $3.4 million
 Decreasing trade and other receivables by $2.4 million
 Increasing goodwill by $9.8 million

2.3 Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except certain financial assets (includingretirement benefit obligations) and financial liabilities (including derivatives) measured at fair value.
2.4 Going concern
These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis under the historical cost convention,unless otherwise stated.
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, its financialposition, financial risk management objectives, details of its financial instruments and derivative activities, andits exposures to credit, liquidity and cash flow risk are described in the Management Report. In addition, note 27to the Group Financial Statements include the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital,financial risk management, details of financial instruments and hedging activities, and its exposure to creditliquidity and other risks.
In applying the going concern basis, the Managers have considered the Group cash flow projections and assessedthe robustness of the forecast through sensitivities around the key assumptions, in particular revenue growthrate, gross margin and cash conversion. At the year end, the Group has considerable financial resources withliquidity available on the Balance Sheet from its cash resources, with $375m cash balances net of overdrafts.The Group also had unused credit facilities of $198m. As of end March 2024 the group’s cash balance is $83.2m,the RCF is fully drawn including $40m utilised for bank guarantees, consequently the total liquidity available tothe Group is $83.2m.
There is a springing financial covenant applicable to the Revolving Credit Facility that is tested, subject to certainconditions, quarterly if the facility, net of cash balances, is over 40% drawn. The covenant requires that theleverage ratio of senior secured net debt to EBITDA of the Group does not exceed 9.1:1.  With the RCF fullydrawn at 31 March 2024 the springing covenant ratio is <9.1:1x, and remains below this level throughout thegoing concern review period.
The Group has a mix of shorter and longer term contracts and a number of leading market positions withcustomers across different geographical areas. As a consequence, the Managers believe that the Group isordinarily well-placed to manage its business risks successfully.
The Managers have reviewed detailed cash flow projections to the end of July 2025 and have applied stress testson its cash position. These include a severe but plausible downside scenario which assume forecast net cashinflows from business operations are reduced by 25% for the entire forecast period. In these scenarios theManagers have confirmed that the Group would be able to operate and service the senior debt within the levelof its currently available funding over the next 12 months without breaching the covenants in place.
Accordingly, after making enquiries, the Managers have concluded at the time of approving the financialstatements that it is their expectation that the Company and the Group as a whole have adequate financialresources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adoptthe going concern basis in preparing the Group Financial Statements.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.5 Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or hasrights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns throughits power over the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. Theacquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of subsidiariesare included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date thatcontrol ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
Change in subsidiary ownership and loss of control
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when theCompany loses control of the subsidiary.
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equitytransactions.
Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities are derecognised along with any relatednon-controlling interest and other components of equity.  Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit orloss.  Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.
Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currencytransactions gains or losses), arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses areeliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
2.6 Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at theforeign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreigncurrencies at the balance sheet date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate rulingat that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the consolidated incomestatement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currencyare translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to the functional currency at foreignexchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising onconsolidation, are translated to the Group’s presentational currency, US Dollars, at foreign exchange rates rulingat the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average ratefor the year where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising from this translation of foreign operations are reported as an item of othercomprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve. When a foreign operation is disposed of,such that control is lost, the entire accumulated amount in the translation reserve, is recycled to profit or loss aspart of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary thatincludes a foreign operation while still retaining control, the relevant proportion of the accumulated amount isreattributed to non-controlling interests.
Exchange differences arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, thesettlement of which is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of a netinvestment in a foreign operation and are recognised directly in equity in the translation reserve. Foreign currencydifferences arising on the translation of a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation are recognised directlyin equity, in the translation reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective. When the hedged part of a netinvestment is disposed of, the associated cumulative amount in equity is recycled to profit or loss as anadjustment to the profit or loss on disposal.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financialliabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability isinitially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transactioncosts that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financingcomponent is initially measured at the transaction price.
The Group uses a non-recourse factoring scheme for certain of its receivables. Receivables subject to thisarrangement are fully derecognised from the Balance Sheet as soon as their acceptance is validated by thefactoring company and all risks and rewards are transferred.
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
(a) Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised costor or FVTPL. Financial assetsare not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model formanaging financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the firstreporting period following the change in the business model. A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if itmeets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal andinterest on the principal amount outstanding.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL. This includes allderivative financial assets.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits that are held for the purpose of meetingshort-term cash commitments and are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral partof the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose onlyof the cash flow statement.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents asdefined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part ofthe Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the consolidatedstatement of financial position.
(b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL - these assets (other than derivatives designated as hedging instruments) aresubsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, arerecognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost - these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectiveinterest method and are subject to impairment. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses andimpairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
(b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses (continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform
When the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured atamortised cost changed as a result of interest benchmark reform, the Group updated the effective interest rateof the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform. A change in thebasis for determining the contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if the followingconditions are met:
- The change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and
- The new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis –i.e., the basis immediately before the change.
When the changes were made to a financial asset or a financial liability in addition to changes to the basis fordetermining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group first updated theeffective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by interestrate benchmark reform.  After that, the Group applied the policies on accounting for modifications to theadditional changes.
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the followingtwo conditions:
(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or toexchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentiallyunfavourable to the Group; and
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Group’s own equity instrumentsor is a derivative that will be settled by the Group’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financialassets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.
To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where theinstrument so classified takes the legal form of the Group’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financialstatements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as atFVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using theeffective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit orloss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
(iii) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value.  The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value isrecognised immediately in profit or loss.
(iv) Impairment
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortisedcost and contract assets (as defined in IFRS 15).
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for other debt securities andbank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financialinstrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition which are measured as 12 month ECL.
Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing componentare always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.



Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l.For the year ended 31 December 2023Notes (forming part of the financial statements) (continued)

31

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Financial assets (continued)
(iv) Impairment (continued)
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognitionand when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant andavailable without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-lookinginformation.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses,represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financialinstrument.
12 month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 monthsafter the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Groupis exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of allcash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract andthe cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of thefinancial asset. These are assessed with reference to past default rates, also reflecting forward lookinginformation such as local economic or market conditions and using a provision matrix where appropriate.
Write-offs
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that thereis no realistic prospect of recovery.
(v) Derecognition
Financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when:– the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or– it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or- the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and itdoes not retain control of the financial asset.
Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modifiedliability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognisedat fair value.
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and theconsideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit orloss.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmentlosses.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for asseparate items of property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefullives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land and assets under construction are notdepreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
 buildings 40 to 50 years
 plant and machinery 3 to 20 years
 short leasehold improvements over remaining period of lease
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
2.9 Business combinations
All business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is thedate on which control is transferred to the Group.
For business combinations, the Group has determined whether a particular set of activities and assets is abusiness by assessing whether the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input andsubstantive process and whether the acquired set has the ability to produce outputs. The Group has an optionto apply a 'concentration test' that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities andassets is not a business. This election can be applied on a transaction-by-transaction basis. The optionalconcentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in asingle identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
 the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
 the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
 the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
 the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, areexpensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingentconsideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.
On a transaction-by-transaction basis, the Group elects to measure non-controlling interests, which have bothpresent ownership interests and are entitled to a proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree in the eventof liquidation, either at its fair value or at its proportionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiablenet assets of the acquiree at the acquisition date. All other non-controlling interests are measured at their fairvalue at the acquisition date.
2.10 Intangible assets and goodwill
Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating unitsand is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Intangible assets and goodwill (continued)
Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the consolidated income statement as an expense as incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commerciallyfeasible and the Group intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development,future economic benefits are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to theintangible asset during its development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production ofnew or substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials,direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other developmentexpenditure is recognised in the consolidated income statement as an expense as incurred. Capitaliseddevelopment expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairmentlosses.
Costs associated with producing or maintaining computer software programmes for sale are recognised as anexpense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique softwareproducts controlled by the Group, that will generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year andthat can be measured reliably, are recognised as intangible assets.
Other intangible assets
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the consolidated income statement asan expense as incurred.
Acquired computer software licences for use within the Group are capitalised as intangible assets on the basisof the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
Patents and trademarks are stated initially at historical cost. Patents and trademarks have definite useful livesand are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation
Amortisation is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefullives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life andgoodwill are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets areamortised from the date they are available for use and are reviewed at least annually for indicators of impairment.The estimated useful lives are as follows:
 Customer relationships 5 to 21 years
 Intellectual property 5 to 10 years
 Profit in acquired order book 1 to 4 years
 Other acquired intangible assets 1 to 5 years
 Capitalised development costs 2 to 10 years
 Other intangibles:

- Software 3 to 5 years
- Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years

The amortisation charge is included within operating expenses.
2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-outprinciple and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs andother costs in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventoriesand work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.Provision is made for any obsolete, slow-moving or defective items.
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2.12 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributionsinto a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations forcontributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the consolidated incomestatement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.
Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s netobligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated separatelyfor each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their servicein the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value ofany plan assets (at bid price) are deducted. The Group determines the net interest on the net defined benefitliability/(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at thebeginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that havematurity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency inwhich the benefits are expected to be paid.
Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Group recognises themimmediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in employeebenefit expenses in profit or loss.
The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unitcredit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the presentvalue of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributionsand takes into account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements.
Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relatedservice is provided.  A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus orprofit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result ofpast service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
2.13 Provisions
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation asa result of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefitswill be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flowsat a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.
2.14 Revenue
The Group recognises revenue from the sales of goods and from long-term contracts. Revenue is measuredbased on the consideration specified in a contract. Revenue is recognised either when the performance obligationin the contract has been performed, i.e. ‘point in time’ recognition, or, over time, as control of the performanceobligation is transferred to the customer. Under a book-and-hold agreement with a customer, the Group mayhave physical possession of an asset that the customer controls, therefore the revenue is recognised when thecustomer has control of the asset. The Group follows the ‘five step’ model as set out in IFRS 15 to ensure thatrevenue is recognised at the appropriate point whether over time or at a point in time; the five steps are:
 Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
 Identify the performance obligations.
 Determine the transaction price.
 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations.
 Recognise revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.14    Revenue (continued)
For each performance obligation, the Group determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a point intime.
The Group has a number of contracts with government bodies, particularly in the Maritime and Intelligence andCommunications businesses, for which control is typically transferred to the customer as the product is beingmanufactured or as the services are being provided. For these contracts, revenue is recognised over time withreference to the stage of completion, using cost to measure progress. For ‘cost-plus’ contracts (typically withgovernment departments and agencies), revenue is recognised to the extent of reimbursable costs incurred, plusa proportionate amount of the estimated fee earned.
The Group has a number of long term development programmes, particularly within the Maritime business. Forthe majority of these contracts revenue is recognised over time on a percentage of completion basis. This iswhere a portion of the contract revenue is recognised based on contract costs incurred to date compared withtotal estimated costs at completion. This method is considered to most faithfully depict the transfer of goods andservices to the customer over the life of the performance obligation. As these products come out of thedevelopment phase and into full rate production, revenue is recognised at a point in time where there is analternative use.
Each of the Group’s five businesses, Maritime, Intelligence and Communications, PCS, Energy and ForensicTechnology has a mix of over time and point in time revenue. The majority of revenue in Maritime andIntelligence and Communications is over time. The majority of revenue in PCS and Energy is point in time. Themajority of the revenue in the Forensic Technology business is generated from providing services to customers,and is recognised over time.
Over time
Performance obligations are satisfied over time if one of the following criteria is satisfied:
 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance asit performs.
 The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is createdor enhanced.
 The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and it has anenforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
Revenue that is recognised over time is determined by reference to the stage of completion of the performanceobligation. For each performance obligation to be recognised over time, revenue and attributable margin arecalculated by reference to reliable estimates of transaction price and total expected costs, after making suitableallowances for technical and other risks, except in limited scenarios where the proportion of costs incurredwould not be representative of the stage of completion. Owing to the complexity of some of the contractsundertaken by the Group, the cost estimation process and the allocation of costs and revenue to eachperformance obligation are carried out using the experience of the Group’s engineers, project managers andfinance and commercial professionals. Cost estimates are reviewed and updated on a regular basis. Some of thefactors impacting cost estimates include the availability of suitably qualified labour, the nature and complexity ofthe work to be performed, the technology readiness level, the availability of materials and the performance ofsub-contractors. Revenue and associated margin are recognised progressively as costs are incurred and as riskshave been mitigated or retired.
For contracts with multiple activities or deliverables, management considers whether those promised goods andservices are: (i) distinct – to be accounted for as separate performance obligations; (ii) not distinct – to becombined with other promised goods or services until a bundle is identified that is distinct; or (iii) part of a seriesof distinct goods and services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to thecustomer. Goods and services are distinct if the customer can benefit from them on their own or together withother resources that are readily available to the customer, and they are separately identifiable in the contract.For example, certain Ultra contracts might be to design and build a system as one performance obligation whenthe criteria above are assessed. Other Ultra contracts might contain one performance obligation to design asystem and a separate obligation to build them: these are required to be treated as separate performanceobligations if, for example, the customer obtains control of the design and could ask another contractor to buildthem.
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2.14    Revenue (continued)
At the start of a contract, the total transaction price is estimated as the amount of consideration to which theGroup expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods and services to the customer,excluding sales taxes. The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on relativestandalone selling prices of all items in the contract. This could be based on list prices, external market evidenceor, where individual tailored products are concerned, based on the estimated expected costs to produce the itemor deliver the services, plus a reasonable margin to reflect the risk of delivering the product or service. Variableconsideration (for example, discounts dependent on sales levels, returns, refunds, rebates and other incentives)is included based on the expected value, or most likely amount, only to the extent that it is highly probable thatthere will not be a reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised.
The transaction price does not include estimates of consideration resulting from contract modifications, such aschange orders, until they have been approved by the parties to the contract. A contract modification exists whenthe parties to the contract approve a modification that either changes existing or creates new enforceable rightsand obligations.
Payment terms vary from contract to contract but will typically be 30 days from the date of invoice. The Group’scontracts are not considered to include significant financing components on the basis that there is no differencebetween the consideration and the cash selling price.
Over time (continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised to the extent that they are recoverable from thecustomer and the anticipated contract period will be more than one year. Incremental costs are those that wouldnot have arisen if the contract had not been obtained. Unconditional bid or proposal costs would not becapitalised as costs to obtain a contract because they are incurred whether the contract is obtained or not. Ultrahas not capitalised any such costs to date. The effect of a contract modification on the transaction price and theGroup’s measure of progress towards the satisfaction of the performance obligation is recognised either as: (i)an additional separate contract; (ii) as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract; or(iii) as part of the original contract using a cumulative catch-up.
Where the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to theextent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expensesin the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognisedas an expense immediately. Under IFRS 15, an option to acquire additional goods or services gives rise to aseparate performance obligation, if the option provides a material right that the customer would not receivewithout entering into that contract. IFRS 15 requires management to estimate the transaction price to beallocated to the separate performance obligations and to recognise a contract liability for the performanceobligations that will be satisfied in the future. The Group recognises revenue for the option when those futuregoods or services are transferred to the customer.
Point in time
If performance obligations do not meet the criteria to recognise revenue over time, then revenue from the saleof goods or services is recognised at a point in time. This is measured at the fair value of the considerationreceived or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods or services provided in the normal course ofbusiness, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes. Revenue is normally recognised when control ofthe goods or services has transferred to the customer. This may be:
 At the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by the customer;
 When the customer has legal title to the asset;
 When the customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset; or
 When customer-specific acceptance criteria have been met, e.g. when product testing has been completed.
In the majority of cases, revenue is recognised at the point of physical delivery and acceptance by the customer,and the Group has the right to payment.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.14 Revenue (continued)
Contract assets and liabilities
The timing of payments received from customers, relative to the recording of revenue, can have a significantimpact on the contract-related assets and liabilities recorded on the Group’s balance sheet.
The majority of development programmes have payment terms based on contractual milestones, which are notnecessarily aligned to when revenue is recognised, particularly for those contracts with revenue recognised overtime by reference to the stage of completion. This can lead to recognition of revenue in advance of customerbillings; ‘amounts receivable from over-time contract customers’ relates to work performed and revenuerecognised on agreed contracts prior to the customer being invoiced. On other development programmes, aproportion of the transaction price is received in advance and consequently a contract liability arises; ‘amountspayable to over-time contract customers’ relates to payments received from customers in relation to the contractprior to the work being completed and the revenue recognised.
For contracts where revenue is recognised at a point in time, ‘deferred income’ recorded on the balance sheetrepresents payments received from customers prior to the work being completed and the revenue recognised,and ‘accrued income’ recorded on the balance sheet represents any revenue recognised on agreed contractsprior to the customer being invoiced.
When a good or service provided is returned or to be refunded the revenue is reversed equal to the amountoriginally recognised as revenue for that good or service. Consideration of returns and refunds is made whencalculating the transaction price to be allocated to the performance obligation.
A warranty may represent a separate performance obligation if it is distinct from the other elements of thecontract (i.e. it can be sold separately and provides additional goods and services beyond the agreed-uponspecifications), otherwise it is treated as a provision. Most warranties are treated as provisions. If it is a separateperformance obligation, then the revenue is recognised when the control of the additional good or service underthe warranty is passed to the customer.
For a contract recognised over time under IFRS 15 the control of the product may be passed to the customerbefore the customer is invoiced. At this point, revenue is recognised, and an asset is recorded on the balancesheet as an amount receivable from over-time contract customers. The amount receivable from over-timecontract customers is classified as a current asset when it is to be invoiced within 12 months, otherwise it isrecorded as a non-current asset. This asset is transferred to trade receivables once the customer is invoiced,following which cash is expected to be received per the agreed contractual terms.
Conversely, a payment may be received from the customer before the control of the product is passed to them.At this point a liability is recorded on the balance sheet as an amount due to over-time contract customers, whichis recognised net of any refunds expected to be paid. This liability is derecognised when the control is passed tothe customer and revenue can be recorded. Amounts due to overtime contract customers is recorded as a currentliability when the revenue is expected to be recognised within the next 12 months, otherwise it is classified as anon-current liability.
2.15 Expenses
Finance expenses
Financing expenses include interest payable and finance charges on lease liabilities recognised in profit or lossusing the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and fair value movements onfinancial instruments measured at FVTPL. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised aspart of the cost of that asset.
2.16 Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the incomestatement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognisedin equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax ratesenacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect ofprevious years.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.16 Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financialreporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are notprovided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neitheraccounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments insubsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred taxprovided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets andliabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be availableagainst which the temporary difference can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewedat each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profitswill be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
Tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets againstcurrent tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
2.17 Leases
At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, orcontains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time inexchange for consideration.
As a lessee
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, along with one or moreother lease or non-lease components, the Group accounts for each lease component separately from the non-lease components. However, for the leases of properties, the Group has elected not to separate non-leasecomponents and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component. The Groupallocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone priceand the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for anylease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, less any leaseincentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement dateto the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by theend of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option.In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which isdetermined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset isperiodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at thecommencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readilydetermined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
 variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as atthe commencement date
 amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
 the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise,
 lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extensionoption, and
 penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.17 Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when thereis a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, there is a change in the Group'sestimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes itsassessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amountof the right-of-use asset, to the extent that the right-of-use asset is reduced to nil, with any further adjustmentrequired from the remeasurement being recorded in profit or loss.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for lease of low-value assets(<$5,000) and short-term leases (less than one year). The Group recognises the lease payments associated withthese leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease acquired in a business combination
For leases acquired in a business combination, the Group measures the acquired lease liability at the presentvalue of the remaining lease payments, as if the acquired lease were a new lease at the acquisition date. Theright-of-use asset is measured at acquisition at the same amount as the lease liability, adjusted to reflectfavourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
2.18 Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the income statement so as to match them with the expenditure towardswhich they are intended to contribute, to the extent that the conditions for receipt have been met and there isreasonable assurance that the grant will be received.
Government assistance provided in the form of below-market rate of interest loans are treated as Governmentgrants. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest is calculated as the difference between the proceedsreceived and the fair value of the loan and is matched against the related expenditure.
The fair value of the loan is calculated using prevailing market interest rates.
2.19 Share based compensation
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group participate in a share-based arrangement by subscribingto shares in the shareholding structure of the Group. The Group treats the arrangement as equity settled, sincethe transaction is settled by the Shareholder based on the fair value of the Group’s shares. The Group recordsthe cost in employee benefits expense only if the fair value differs from the subscription value at the grant date(subscription date).
2.20 Equity preferred certificates
Under the terms and conditions of the equity preferred certificates issued by the Group, the shares areredeemable in cash only at the option of the issuer and therefore do not satisfy the definition of a financialliability in IAS 32. In addition, they are interest and dividend free, and redemption of the certificates is at thediscretion of the issuer. As a result, preference shares are classified as equity and recognised at nominal value.
2.21 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amountand fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of anasset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.  Assets and liabilities classified as heldfor sale are presented separately as current items in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recoveredthrough a sale transaction that is highly probable within one year from the date of classification and the asset ordisposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving the loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets andliabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the recognition criteria are met, irrespective ofwhether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary subsequent to the sale.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.22 New and amended standards and interpretations
The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periodsbeginning on or after 1 January 2023 (unless otherwise stated). The Group has not early adopted any otherstandard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. None of the amendmentsshown below had a material impact on the Group’s financial reporting.
 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
 Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8
 Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction – Amendments to IAS 12
 International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules – Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 include:
 A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arisingfrom the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules; and
 Disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the financial statements betterunderstand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation.

The Group has applied the mandatory exception and is not recognising any deferred tax impact.Further information about the impact of the Pillar Two model framework, including the impact on theeffective tax rate for 2024, is set out in Note 10.
None of the new and amended standards and interpretations had a material impact on the Groups consolidatedfinancial statements.
2.23 Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date ofissuance of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below.

 Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
 Amendments to IFRS 18: Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
 Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
 Amendments to IAS21: The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
 Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

Although the Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, whenthey become effective, management are currently assessing the impact of these changes and believe that noneof these amendments is expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial reporting.
3 Accounting estimates and judgements
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Board of Managers are required to make judgements(other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to makeestimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparentfrom other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and otherfactors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates andunderlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised inthe period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revisionand future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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3 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
In the course of preparing the financial statements, judgements have been made in the process of applyingthe Group’s accounting policies, other than those involving estimates, that have had a significant effect on theamounts recognised in the financial statements. The most significant are:
Share based compensation
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group participate in a share-based arrangement by subscribingto shares in the shareholding structure of the Group. The Group treats the arrangement as equity settled, sincethe transaction is settled by the Shareholder based on the fair value of the Group’s shares. The Group recordsthe cost in employee benefits expense only if the fair value differs from the subscription value at the grant date(subscription date). The Group considers that the fair value does not materially differ from the subscription value.
Equity preferred certificates
Under the terms and conditions of the equity preferred certificates issued by the Group, the shares areredeemable in cash only at the option of the issuer and therefore do not satisfy the definition of a financialliability in IAS 32. In addition, they are interest and dividend free, and redemption of the certificates is at thediscretion of the issuer. As a result, the preference shares are classified as equity and recognised at nominalvalue.
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reportingperiod, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets andliabilities within the next financial year, are discussed on the following page.
Contract revenue and profit recognition
A significant proportion of the Group’s activities are conducted under long-term contract arrangements and areaccounted for in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This revenue is derived froma large number of individual contracts across the Group. Revenue and profit recognition on these contracts isbased on estimates of future costs as well as an assessment of contingencies for technical risks and other risks;for example, assessment of the time and cost required to design, build, integrate and test a new product wherethe technology involved is currently at a low technology readiness level, and other risks such as the ability toobtain the necessary customer specification approval, or regulatory approvals. There are no individual contractswhere the estimation uncertainty is considered to have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustmentwithin the next financial year; however, a quantification of the impact across the aggregated portfolio of over-time contracts of a 1% increase in estimated costs to complete is included in note 4.
Key assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainties
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Determination of the value in use of CGUs, as assessed in relation to the annual review of goodwill and anysubsequent impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, or reversal of previously impaired intangible assets,relies on estimated cash flows, discounted to present value.  The Group has modelled a range of scenarios toconsider the impact on the carrying value of its assets.
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4 Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregation of revenue
In the following tables, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products/service linesand timing of revenue recognition.

Point in time Over time TotalYear ended 31 December 2023 $m $m $mContinuing OperationsMaritime 131.2 518.9 650.1Intelligence and Communications 143.2 140.8 284.0Precision Control Systems 137.6 44.6 182.2Energy 34.7 31.9 66.6446.7 736.2 1,182.9Discontinued OperationsForensic Technology 21.1 26.4 47.521.1 26.4 47.5
Total revenue 467.8 762.6 1,230.4

Point in time Over time TotalYear ended 31 December 2022 $m $m $mContinuing OperationsMaritime 51.9 199.1 251.0Intelligence and Communications 67.4 98.6 166.0Precision Control Systems 49.9 18.9 68.8Energy 14.5 9.9 24.4183.7 326.5 510.2Discontinued OperationsForensic Technology 13.2 16.0 29.213.2 16.0 29.2
Total revenue 196.9 342.5 539.4

Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mPrimary geographical markets (continuing operations)North America 712.9 341.8United Kingdom 284.4 100.9Rest of World 91.4 39.5Mainland Europe 94.2 28.01,182.9 510.2
The estimate of future costs on over-time contracts is a critical accounting estimate as set out in note 3. Acrossthe aggregated portfolio of over-time contracts open at 31 December 2023, a 1% increase in estimated costs tocomplete the portfolio equates to $8.4m (2022: $8.5m). The impact on revenue would depend on the marginand percentage of completion of any given contract within the portfolio; however, when taken in aggregate, itis not likely to exceed $8.4m (2022: $8.5m).
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4 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii) Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contractswith customers.

Note 31 December2023 31 December2022$m $mTrade receivables 19 78.6 139.1Contract assets 19 116.0 103.3Contract liabilities 21 (180.6) (137.1)
Contract assets relate to work performed and revenue recognised on agreed contracts prior to the customerbeing invoiced. Contract liabilities relate to payments received from customers in relation to the contract prior tothe work being completed and the revenue recognised.
Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the period are as follows:

Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mContract assetsAt start of the period 103.3 -Recognised on the acquisition of Ultra - 118.6Revenue earned net of billings 13.4 (4.3)Adjustments to revenue recognised in a prior period (0.6) (1.9)Transfer to assets held for sale - (7.6)Foreign exchange differences (0.1) 0.9At end of the period 116.0 105.7Adjustment to net assets recognised on the acquisition of Ultra - (2.4)At end of the period (restated) 116.0 103.3
Contract liabilitiesAt start of the period 137.1 -Recognised on the acquisition of Ultra - 116.9Adjustments to revenue recognised in prior period 0.6 -Cash advances net of revenue recognised 37.2 21.9Derecognised on disposal of subsidiary 0.9 -Other - (0.7)Foreign exchange differences 4.8 (1.0)At end of the period 180.6 137.1
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligationsthat are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the reporting date.

2024 2025 2026 andbeyond TotalAs at 31 December 2023 $m $m $m $mPoint in time revenue 341.0 238.8 41.6 621.4Over time revenue 649.8 384.9 221.1 1,255.8990.8 623.7 262.7 1,877.2
2023 2024 2025 andbeyond TotalAs at 31 December 2022 $m $m $m $mPoint in time revenue 369.9 173.0 107.1 650.0Over time revenue 696.6 324.6 184.4 1,205.61,066.5 497.6 291.5 1,855.6
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5 Operating loss (continuing operations)
Operating loss is stated after charging:

Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mWages and salaries 291.5 120.5Social security costs 28.3 13.4Pension costs 15.8 5.7Other staff related costs 61.5 36.5Acquired assets related amortisation and impairment (note 12) 211.8 99.5Underlying amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) 8.0 4.2Underlying depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 13) 16.4 8.7Underlying depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 14) 9.9 4.4Foreign currency translation (gains)/losses (2.7) 11.7Audit fees 4.1 1.6Acquisition and other non-underlying items (note 6) 6.5 50.4
6 Acquisition and other items (continuing operations)

Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mIncluded within operating expenses before depreciation and amortisationAcquisition of Ultra including integration costs 2.1 (51.1)Other non-underlying income and expenses (8.6) 0.7(6.5) (50.4)
Included within amortisation and impairmentAmortisation of acquired intangible assets (note 12) (213.0) (94.9)Impairment of right-of-use assets (note 14) 1.2 (1.6)(211.8) (96.5)

(218.3) (146.9)
7 Finance income (continuing operations)

Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mBank interest 14.7 1.0Financial liabilities at FVTPL – net change in fair value (note 28) - 0.6Retirement benefit scheme finance income 1.8 0.3Fair value movement on derivatives (note 27) 17.8 0.234.3 2.1
8 Finance costs (continuing operations)

Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mInterest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 243.2 80.5Amortisation of finance costs of debt 10.3 4.4Foreign exchange on borrowings 0.3 11.2Interest expense on lease liabilities 3.2 0.3257.0 96.4
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9 Business combinations and divestments
Business combinations in 2022
On 1 August 2022, the Group acquired all of the ordinary shares in Ultra Electronics Holdings plc (“Ultra”) for$3,112.2m, satisfied in cash. The 2022 comparative information has been restated to reflect changes to the PPAamounts and they are now final as the 12 month period since acquisition has passed.
In the five months to 31 December 2022, Ultra contributed a net loss before tax of $88.0m to the consolidatednet loss for the year. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2022, Group revenue would have been anestimated $1,223.0m and consolidated net loss before tax would have been an estimated $49.2m. In determiningthese amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of acquisitionwould have been the same if the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2022.
Effect of acquisitionThe acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Fair valuerecognisedon acquisition2022
Additionaladjustmentsrecognised

Final Fair valuerecognisedon acquisition$m $m $mAcquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date:Property, plant and equipment 151.5 - 151.5Right-of-use assets 45.4 - 45.4Intangible assets 2,304.3 - 2,304.3Deferred tax assets 6.2 - 6.2Inventories 166.4 - 166.4Trade and other receivables 293.7 (2.4) 291.3Current tax assets 13.5 - 13.5Cash and cash equivalents 189.8 - 189.8Derivative financial instruments (23.7) - (23.7)Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (238.4) - (238.4)Trade and other payables (305.1) - (305.1)Current tax liabilities (17.0) - (17.0)Deferred tax liabilities (576.9) (3.4) (580.3)Provisions (54.1) (4.0) (58.1)Retirement benefit obligations (4.5) - (4.5)Net identifiable assets and liabilities 1,951.1 (9.8) 1,941.3
Consideration paid:Initial cash price paid 3,112.2 - 3,112.2
Goodwill on acquisition 1,161.1 9.8 1,170.9
Within the 12 month period following the date of acquisition the purchase price allocation was finalized resultingin additional adjustment recognized as follows:

 Increasing provisions by $4.0 million and deferred tax liabilities by $3.4 million;
 Decreasing trade and other receivables by $2.4 million; and
 Increasing goodwill by $9.8 million.

Goodwill of $1,170.9m comprises the fair value of expected synergies arising from acquisition and representsthe premium paid in anticipation of future economic benefits from assets that are not capable of being separatelyidentified and separately recognised, such as the value of the workforce. Goodwill is not anticipated to bedeductible for tax purposes.
Acquisition related costs
The Group incurred direct acquisition related costs of $15.4m related to stamp duty payable on the purchase ofshares.  Additional costs related to the acquisition include professional advisor fees ($18.3m) and exceptionalemployment related payments ($18.9m). These costs have all been included in non-underlying expenses in theGroup’s Consolidated Income Statement.
Acquired receivables
The fair value of acquired receivables was $114.2m.  The gross contractual amounts receivable are $116.6mand, at the acquisition date, $2.4m of contractual cash flows were not expected to be received.
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9 Business combinations and divestments (continued)
Business divestments
On 3 March 2023, Ultra Electronics Defense, Inc signed a definitive agreement with CAES Systems Holdings LLC,a 100% owned subsidiary of AI Convoy (Luxembourg) S.à r.l., to divest Herley Industries LLC and Herley - CTILLC for $254m on a cash free, debt free basis. This represented a premium of $20.9m over the net assets heldfor sale as at the date of disposal. The assets and liabilities of Herley were included within Assets Held For Saleat 31 December 2022. AI Convoy (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group’s ultimateparent. Herley Industries and Herley - CTI produce microwave technology and related products for radars,weapon sensors, flight instrumentation and electronic warfare systems in support of defence and aerospaceindustry clients. The transaction completed on 3 March 2023.
On 1 September 2023, Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited completed the sale of Ultra Electronics ForensicTechnology Inc. (“Forensic Technology”), its subsidiaries, and certain other entities which together comprise theUltra Electronics Forensic Technology business, a leader in 3-D imagery and automated ballistic identification, toLeadsOnline LLC, a provider of data, technology and intelligence tools to U.S. law enforcement agencies. Ondisposal, a total gain on divestments of $174.1m was realised, as follows:

Herley ForensicTechnology Total$m $m $mGross consideration 254.0 306.9 560.9Net assets at date of divestment (232.6) (115.7) (348.3)Expenses of sale (0.6) (17.7) (18.3)Foreign exchange adjustments - 0.8 0.8Recycling of Translation reserves - (0.1) (0.1)Net gain on divestments before tax 20.8 174.2 195.0
The net cash impact of the divestment during the year is as follows:

Herley ForensicTechnology Total$m $m $mCash consideration 254.0 306.9 560.9Expenses of sale (0.6) (17.7) (18.3)Cash disposed (2.2) (0.3) (2.5)Net cash impact of divestments in current year 251.2 288.9 540.1
The net assets at the date of divestment were as follows:

Herley ForensicTechnology Total$m $m $mIntangible assets 211.5 144.0 355.5Property, plant and equipment 29.1 4.5 33.6Right-of-use assets 0.3 6.1 6.4Inventories 13.5 8.1 21.6Trade and other receivables 20.8 20.5 41.3Deferred tax receivables - 0.2 0.2Corporate tax receivable - 1.4 1.4Cash and cash equivalents 2.2 0.3 2.5Lease obligations (0.3) (6.5) (6.8)Trade and other payables (15.7) (32.3) (48.0)Current tax liabilities (0.1) (1.5) (1.6)Provisions (1.4) - (1.4)Deferred tax liabilities (27.3) (29.1) (56.4)Net assets divested 232.6 115.7 348.3
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9 Business combinations and divestments (continued)
As at 31 December 2023, no assets and liabilities had been classified as held for sale for net assets planned tobe disposed of in the following 12 months. Those that were classified as such at 31 December 2022, are shownin the table below at their fair value at that date. They were measured on a non-recurring basis at amortisedcost. All of the assets held at 31 December 2022 were part of the Intelligence and Communications division andrelate to the US Specialist RF business, Herley.

9a Discontinued operations
The results for the year (and previous year) from discontinued operations was as follows:

2023 2022ForensicTechnology Total ForensicTechnology Total$m $m $m $mRevenue 47.5 47.5 29.2 29.2Cost of sales (23.3) (23.3) (14.6) (14.6)Gross profit 24.2 24.2 14.6 14.6
Operating expenses (16.6) (16.6) (7.2) (7.2)Acquisition and other items 0.1 0.1 - -Acquired assets related amortisation andimpairment (7.0) (7.0) (4.2) (4.2)Operating profit 0.7 0.7 3.2 3.2
Finance income 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2Finance costs (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2)Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinuedoperations 0.8 0.8 3.2 3.2Tax (2.0) (2.0) 1.5 1.5Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinuedoperations (1.2) (1.2) 4.7 4.7
The contribution to the Group's cash flows from discontinued operations was as follows:

2023 2022ForensicTechnology7 Total ForensicTechnology7 Total$m $m $m $mNet cash from operating activities (7.9) (7.9) 11.5 11.5Net cash used in investing activities (1.0) (1.0) (0.2) (0.2)Net cash used in financing activities (excludingintercompany dividends) (0.4) (0.4) (0.5) (0.5)
7 The results for Forensic Technology covered the period January to September 2023 – the comparative period is from 1 August 2022,the date Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries were acquired by and consolidated into Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.àr.l., to 31 December 2022.

2022$mIntangible assets 211.5Property, plant and equipment 29.1Right-of-use assets 0.3Inventories 13.7Trade and other receivables 19.5Total assets classified as held for sale 274.1
Trade and other payables (15.1)Borrowings (0.3)Provisions (1.4)Deferred tax liabilities (27.3)Total liabilities classified as held for sale (44.1)Total held for sale 230.0
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9a Discontinued operations (continued)
The results from discontinued operations in the period ending 31 December 2022 have been restated to includeForensic Technology which was divested in September 2023 and is treated as discontinued operations in boththe current and previous years.
The Herley business is not treated as a separate Cash Generating Unit nor considered by the Group as a separatemajor line of business. Accordingly, the Herley business has not been presented as a discontinued operation inthe Consolidated Income Statement.
10 Taxation
Recognised in the income statement (continuing operations) Year ended31 December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mCurrent year 40.0 (4.2)Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior year (1.0) 0.7Current tax 39.0 (3.5)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (121.0) (47.3)Change in tax rate - 0.2Deferred tax (121.0) (47.1)
Total tax expense (82.0) (50.6)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income Year ended 31December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mRemeasurements of defined benefit liability/asset 0.6 (2.2)0.6 (2.2)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate Year ended 31December2023 Year ended 31December 2022$m $mLoss for the period (82.1) (139.5)Total tax credit – continuing operations 82.0 50.6Total tax (charge)/credit – discontinued operations (2.0) 1.5Loss before tax for the period (162.1) (191.6)
Tax using the Luxembourg tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) (40.5) (47.9)Reduction in tax rate on deferred tax balances - (0.7)Non-deductible expenses – non-recurring (50.4) 2.3Non-deductible expenses – recurring 1.8 (1.0)CFC exemption - (2.6)Attributes for which DT not recognised 23.2 -Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (15.6) (2.2)Other 1.5 -Total tax expense (80.0) (52.1)
Corporation tax in Luxembourg is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No deferredtaxes arise in Luxembourg. In other territories current tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respectivejurisdictions and deferred tax has been calculated at enacted tax rates that are expected to apply to the periodwhen assets are realised or liabilities are settled. US deferred tax balances at 31 December 2023 have beencalculated at 23.6% (2022: 24.2%) and UK deferred tax balances at 31 December 2023 have been calculated at25% (2022: 25%) which is the enacted UK rate of corporation tax from April 2023.
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10 Taxation (continued)
The gain on disposal of Forensic Technology is tax exempt and within non-recurring, non-deductible expensesin 2023. The operations of the CFC ceased in 2022 and no CFC benefit arose in 2023. The prior year adjustmentarises mainly from additional UK losses arising from the preparation of the 2022 UK corporation tax returns forwhich deferred tax credit can be recognised. Several factors including the level of profits in overseas jurisdictions,corporate transactions, changes to the Luxembourg and overseas tax rates, the possible implementation ofinternational tax reforms in 2024–2026, and other factors not under our control will affect the size of thesedifferences in future.
The Group is subject to enquiries and audits by tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which it operates. The Groupconsiders material tax uncertainties on their individual merits in accordance with IFRIC 23 and, whereappropriate, makes provisions in respect of the potential tax liabilities or restriction of tax benefits that may arise.As at 31 December 2023, the Group holds provisions for such potential issues of $1.3m (2022: $1.2m). Theseprovisions relate to multiple issues, across the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. As the outcome relatingto tax matters can be uncertain until a conclusion is reached with the relevant tax authority or through a legalprocess, the amount ultimately paid may differ materially from the amount accrued.
Pillar Two model framework
During 2023 the Luxembourg Government enacted legislation introducing a global minimum corporate incometax rate, to have effect from 2024 in line with the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development(OECD) Pillar Two framework. We do not anticipate that the rules will have a significant impact on our currenttax charge.
11 Reconciliation of Operating loss to Adjusted EBITDA (continuing operations)
Adjusted EBITDA in these financial statements will differ from Adjusted EBITDA measures calculated using otherbases, such as in financing agreements. This additional information is not uniformly defined by all companiesand may not be comparable with similarly titled measures and disclosures.

Year ended 31December2023 Year ended 31December 2022Note $m $m
Operating loss (135.2) (100.5)Add back:Acquired assets related amortisation and impairment 6 213.0 94.9Acquisition and other items 6 6.5 50.4Underlying depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 16.4 8.7Underlying depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 9.9 4.4Underlying amortisation of intangible assets 12 8.0 4.2Unwind of IFRS 3 fair value adjustments (6.9) 10.8Foreign currency translation losses 5 (2.7) 11.7Adjusted EBITDA 109.0 84.6
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12 Intangible assets
Acquired intangibles Internallygeneratedcapitaliseddevelop-ment costs

Software,patents andtrademarks TotalGoodwill Customerrelationships
Orderbook andtradenames

Otheracquiredintangibles
$m $m $m $m $m $m $mCostAt 1 January 2022 - - - - - - -Acquisitions throughbusiness combinations 1,161.1 1,491.2 187.2 601.3 - 18.9 3,459.7Additions - - - - 0.2 1.3 1.5Disposals - - - - - (1.0) (1.0)Reclassification to assetsheld for sale (111.9) (76.8) (14.4) (12.3) - (5.7) (221.1)Effect of movements inforeign exchange (8.4) (11.2) (1.2) (3.9) - (0.8) (25.5)

At 31 December 2022 1,040.8 1,403.2 171.6 585.1 0.2 12.7 3,213.6Adjustments toacquisitions throughbusiness combinations 9.8 - - - - - 9.8Effect of movements inforeign exchange (0.2) - - - - - (0.2)At 31 December 2022(restated) 1,050.4 1,403.2 171.6 585.1 0.2 12.7 3,223.2Additions - - - - 6.2 1.9 8.1Disposals (63.7) (70.3) (6.3) (22.2) (1.1) (2.9) (166.5)Reclassification fromproperty, plant andequipment - - - - - 0.2 0.2Effect of movements inforeign exchange 17.8 28.5 3.5 11.7 0.1 0.1 61.7At 31 December 2023 1,004.5 1,361.4 168.8 574.6 5.4 12.0 3,126.7
AccumulatedAmortisationBalance at 1 January 2022 - - - - - - -Charge for the year - (40.1) (37.9) (21.1) - (4.3) (103.4)Disposals - - - - - 0.1 0.1Reclassification to assetsheld for sale - 2.4 3.0 0.5 - 3.6 9.5Effect of movements inforeign exchange - (0.4) (0.3) (0.1) - (0.4) (1.2)At 31 December 2022 - (38.1) (35.2) (20.7) - (1.0) (95.0)Charge for the year - (90.4) (83.9) (45.7) (2.7) (4.1) (226.8)Disposals - 6.5 2.9 2.1 0.4 2.6 14.5Effect of movements inforeign exchange - (1.7) (1.7) (0.9) - (1.5) (5.8)At 31 December 2023 - (123.7) (117.9) (65.2) (2.3) (4.0) (313.1)
Carrying AmountAt 31 December 2023 1,004.5 1,237.7 50.9 509.4 3.1 8.0 2,813.6At 31 December 2022(restated) 1,050.4 1,365.1 136.4 564.4 0.2 11.7 3,128.2
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12 Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment testing
The Group has four (2022: five) CGUs – Maritime, Intelligence & Communications, PCS and Energy. Theserepresent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill isallocated to CGUs as set out below:

31 December2023 31 December2022$m $mMaritime 494.1 485.7Intelligence and Communications 391.2 387.7PCS 96.6 91.8Forensic Technology - 63.5Energy 22.6 21.7Total 1,004.5 1,050.4
Goodwill is initially allocated, in the year a business is acquired, to the CGU group expected to benefit from theacquisition. Subsequent adjustments are made to this allocation to the extent that operations, to which goodwillrelates, are transferred between CGU groups. The size of a CGU group varies but is never larger than a reportableoperating segment.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations. In determining the value-in-use for each CGU, the Group prepares cash flows derived from the most recent financial budgets and strategicplans, representing the best estimate of future performance. These plans include detailed financial forecasts andmarket analysis covering the expected development of each CGU over the next four years. The cash flows intoperpetuity are also included and assume a growth rate of 2.5% (2022: 2.5%) per annum for each CGU.
The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rate, future revenues,growth rates, forecast gross margins, underlying operating profit and underlying operating cash conversion.Management estimates the discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the timevalue of money and risks specific to the Group, being the pre-tax Weighted Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”).The WACC is then risk-adjusted to reflect risks specific to each business. The post-tax discount rates used during2023 were Maritime: 9.0%, I&C: 9.0%, PCS: 10.5% and Energy 13.5% (2022: Maritime: 9.8%, I&C: 9.0%, PCS:10.3%, Energy 14.3% and Forensics: 13.8%).
Future revenues are based on orders already received, opportunities that are known and expected at the timeof setting the budget and strategic plans and future growth rates. Budget and strategic plan growth rates arebased on a combination of historical experience, available Government spending data, and management andindustry expectations of the growth rates that are expected to apply in the major markets in which each CGUoperates. Forecast gross margins reflect past experience, factor in expected efficiencies to counter inflationarypressures, and also reflect likely margins achievable in the period. Longer-term growth rates, applied intoperpetuity at the end of the strategic planning period, are set at 2.5%. The long-term growth rate is consideredto be appropriate for the sectors in which it operates, taking into consideration greater defence spendinguncertainty and the possible impacts of climate change.
Within each of the strategic plans, a number of assumptions are made about business growth opportunities,contract wins, product development and available markets. A key assumption is that there will be continueddemand for Ultra’s products and expertise from a number of US Government agencies and prime contractorsduring the strategic plan period, and hence continued profit and cash generation. Sensitivity analysis has beenperformed on the value-in-use calculations to: (i) reduce the post-2027 growth assumption from 2.5% to nil; (ii)increase the discount rates by 2%; (iii) apply a 20% reduction to forecast operating profits in each year of themodelled cash inflows; and (iv) consider specific market factors as noted above.
The value-in-use calculations exceed the CGU carrying values after applying sensitivity analysis for all units exceptMaritime, where an impairment may occur if there is no growth into perpetuity or discount rate were to increaseby 2%. The Managers consider the likelihood of both of these scenarios to be remote and therefore animpairment is unlikely to materialise and no impairment charge has been recognised in these financialstatements.
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13 Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings
Freehold Shortleasehold Plant andmachinery Assets Underconstruction Total$m $m $m $m $mCostAt 1 January 2022 - - - - -Acquisitions through business combinations 66.5 11.2 56.3 17.5 151.5Additions 0.2 1.3 6.3 0.5 8.3Disposals - (0.9) (1.0) - (1.9)Reclassifications from assets underconstruction - - 2.7 (2.7) -Reclassification to assets held for sale (15.4) (0.1) (17.4) (0.1) (33.0)Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0.9) (0.2) (0.4) (0.8) (2.3)At 31 December 2022 50.4 11.3 46.5 14.4 122.6Additions 20.0 1.5 11.9 10.5 43.9Disposals - (2.9) (5.5) - (8.4)Reclassifications from assets underconstruction 15.3 - 0.8 (16.1) -Reclassification to intangible assets - - (0.2) - (0.2)Effect of movements in foreign exchange 2.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 2.6At 31 December 2023 87.9 10.0 53.7 8.9 160.5

Accumulated DepreciationAt 1 January 2022 - - - - -Depreciation charge for the period (1.1) (0.9) (7.0) - (9.0)Disposals - 0.4 0.7 - 1.1Reclassification to assets held for sale 0.1 0.1 3.7 - 3.9Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0.2) - 0.2 - -At 31 December 2022 (1.2) (0.4) (2.4) - (4.0)Depreciation charge for the period (2.4) (1.7) (12.5) - (16.6)Disposals - 0.4 3.2 - 3.6Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0.1) - 0.2 - 0.1At 31 December 2023 (3.7) (1.7) (11.5) - (16.9)
Carrying AmountAt 31 December 2023 84.2 8.3 42.2 8.9 143.6At 31 December 2022 49.2 10.9 44.1 14.4 118.6
Freehold land amounting to $9.1m (2022: $8.7m) is not depreciated.
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14 Right-of-use assets
The Group’s leases relate to real estate, vehicles, printers & copiers, and other equipment. The Group thereforesplits the leases between the following categories: land and buildings, and plant and machinery.

Land andbuildings Plant andmachinery Total$m $m $mCostAt 1 January 2022 - - -Acquisitions through business combinations 44.9 0.5 45.4Additions 0.1 0.2 0.3Reclassification to assets held for sale (0.9) - (0.9)Foreign exchange difference (1.1) 0.1 (1.0)At 31 December 2022 43.0 0.8 43.8Additions 18.0 1.0 19.0Disposals (11.3) (0.1) (11.4)Foreign exchange difference 1.2 - 1.2At 31 December 2023 50.9 1.7 52.6
Accumulated depreciationAt 1 January 2022 - - -Depreciation charge for the period (4.7) (0.1) (4.8)Impairment (1.6) - (1.6)Reclassification to assets held for sale 0.6 - 0.6At 31 December 2022 (5.7) (0.1) (5.8)Depreciation charge for the period (9.4) (1.3) (10.7)Reversal of impairment 1.2 - 1.2Disposals 4.9 0.1 5.0Foreign exchange difference (0.2) - (0.2)At 31 December 2023 (9.2) (1.3) (10.5)
Carrying amountAt 31 December 2023 41.7 0.4 42.1At 31 December 2022 37.3 0.7 38.0
The total cash outflow in the year ended 31 December 2023 relating to leases was $10.1m (2022: $5.3m), ofwhich $0.1m (2022: $0.1m) related to low-value or short-term leases not recognised on the balance sheet.
15 Investments in financial assets
The Group has minority shareholding in a listed entity, Nuscale Power, incorporated in the United States. Theinvestment is recognised as a financial asset measured at fair value through profit and loss. The carrying valueof this investment at the end of the year was $1.4m (2022: $4.5m).
This is a level 1 valuation under the fair value hierarchy and the fair value is determined using valuationtechniques that are based on observable inputs. As a result, the carrying amount is considered to be a reasonableestimate of fair value.
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16 Investments in subsidiaries
The Company owns either directly or indirectly the ordinary share capital of the following undertakings:
Company Address of registeredoffice or equivalent % Owned 2023 % Owned 20223e Technologies International Inc. Rockville, United States 100% 100%Cobham Ultra Acquisitions Limited London, England 100% 100%Cobham Ultra Limited London, England 100% 100%CORVID Holdings Limited Guernsey 95% 95%CORVID Protect Holdings Limited Guernsey 95% 95%DF Group Limited London, England 100% 100%DNE Technologies Inc. Wallingford, United States 100% 100%EMS Development Corporation Yaphank, United States 100% 100%ERAPSCO Columbia City, UnitedStates 50% 50%Forensic Technology (Europe) Limited ** Ireland 0% 100%Forensic Technology AEC Thailand Limited ** Thailand 0% 100%Forensic Technology Inc. ** Largo, United States 0% 100%Forensic Technology Mexico S. de RL. de C.V ** Mexico 0% 100%Forensic Technology-Tecnologia Forense Ltda(in liquidation) Brazil 100% 100%Giga Communications Limited (in liquidation) Gray’s Inn, England 100% 100%Gigasat. Inc Annapolis, United States 100% 100%GigasSat. Asia Pacific Pty Limited Australia 100% 100%Herley Industries Inc. *** Lancaster, United States 0% 100%Herley-CTI Inc. *** Whippany, United States 0% 100%Prologic Inc. Manassas, United States 100% 100%Ultra Cyber Limited Maidenhead, England 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Advanced Tactical Systems Inc. Austin, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Aneira Inc. Columbus, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Australia Pty Limited Australia 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Avalon Systems Pty Limited Australia 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Canada Inc. Dartmouth, Canada 100% 100%Ultra Electronics CEMS Limited Weymouth, England 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Connecticut LLC Victor, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Finance Limited * Jersey 0% 100%Ultra Electronics Forensic Technology Inc./Les Technologies Ultra Electronics Forensic Inc.** Cote Saint-Luc, Canada 0% 100%Ultra Electronics Holdings Limited London, England 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Hong Kong Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%Ultra Electronics ICE, Inc. Manhattan, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics in collaboration withOman Investment Corporation LLC (inliquidation) Oman 70% 70%Ultra Electronics Inc. Sandy Hook, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Limited London, England 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Maritime LLC Wilmington, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Maritime Systems Inc. Dartmouth, Canada 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Measurement Systems Inc. Wallingford, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Ocean Systems Inc. Braintree, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Pension Trustee CompanyLimited London, England 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Precision Air and Land SystemsInc. Lanham, United States 100% 100%Ultra Electronics Swiss Holdings CompanyLimited Gray’s Inn, England 100% 100%Ultra Electronics TCS Inc. Montreal, Canada 100% 100%Ultra Electronics TopScientific AerospaceLimited Hong Kong 50% 50%Ultra Electronics UK Holdings Limited London, England 100% 100%Ultra EWST Limited Farnborough, England 100% 100%Ultra I&C Limited Burridge, England 100% 100%Ultra Nuclear Limited Wimborne, England 100% 100%
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16 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Company Address of registeredoffice or equivalent % Owned 2023 % Owned 2022Ultra PCS Limited Cheltenham, England 100% 100%Ultra PMES Limited Rugeley, England 100% 100%Ultra Sonar Systems Limited Loudwater, England 100% 100%UnderSea Sensor Systems Inc. Columbia City, UnitedStates 100% 100%Weed Instrument Company Inc. Round Rock, United States 100% 100%
* Ultra Electronics Finance Limited was liquidated during 2023.
** Forensic Technology business was divested on 1 September 2023.
*** Herley business was divested in March 2023.
Full registered office addresses are:

Location Full AddressAnnapolis, United States 441 Defense Hwy Ste A Annapolis, MD, 21401-8911 UnitedStatesAustin, United States 4101 Smith School Road, Building IV, Suite 100, Austin, TX78744, United StatesAustralia 12 Douglas Drive Mawson Lakes, South Australia, 5095AustraliaBraintree, United States 115 Bay State Drive, Braintree, MA 02184, United StatesBrazil Conj 193/194, 72 Rua Joaquim Floriano, Itaim Bibi, Sao Paulo,BrazilCheltenham, United Kingdom Arle Court, Hatherley Lane, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL516PN, United KingdomColumbus, United States CT Corporation System, 44000 Easton Comms Way, Suite 125,Columbus OHCote Saint-Luc, Canada 200-5757 Cavendish Boul, Cote Saint-Luc QC H4W2W8,CanadaDartmouth, Canada 40 Atlantic Street, Dartmouth NS B2Y 4N2, CanadaFarnborough, United Kingdom A8 Cody Technology Park, Ively Road, Farnborough, GU14 0LXGrays Inn, United Kingdom 3 Field Court, Gray’s Inn, London, England WC1R 5EF, UnitedKingdomGuernsey Sarnia House, Le Truchot, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1GRHigh Wycombe, United Kingdom Knaves Beech Business Centre, Davies Way, Loudwater,Wooburn Green, High Wycombe HP10 9UT United KingdomHong Kong The Landmark Edinburgh Tower 21/F, Hong KongIreland 1 Stokes Place, St Stephens Green, Dublin 2, IrelandJersey 3rd Floor, 44 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey JE4 9WG, JerseyLancaster, United States 10 Industry Dr, Lancaster, PA 17603, United StatesLanham, United States 4414 Lottsford Vista Road, Lanham, MD  20706, United StatesLargo, United States 7975 114th Ave. North, Suite 2500, Largo, FL 33773-5028,United StatesLondon, United Kingdom Scott House, Suite 1 The Concourse, Waterloo Station,London, England, SE1 7LY United KingdomMaidenhead, United Kingdom Building 1 Foundation Park, Roxborough Way, Maidenhead,England, SL6 3UD United KingdomManassas, United States 9400 Innovation Drive, Manassas, VA 20110, United StatesManhattan, United States 2700 Amherst Avenue, Manhattan, KS 66502, United StatesMexico Calle Bosque De Radiatas 10 Interior 302, Bosques De LasLomas, 05120 Cuajimalpa de Morelos, Mexico City, MexicoMontreal, Canada 5990 Côte de Liesse, Montreal QC H4T 1V7, CanadaRockville, United States 9715 Key West Avenue, Suite 500, Rockville, MD 20850,United StatesRound Rock, United States 707 Jeffrey Way, Round Rock, TX 78665, United StatesRugeley, United Kingdom Towers Business Park, Wheelhouse Road, Rugeley,Staffordshire, WS15 1UZSandy Hook, United States 107 Church Hill Road, Unit GL-2, Sandy Hook, CT 06482United States
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16 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Full registered office addresses are:

Location Full AddressSouthampton, United Kingdom 316 Botley Road, Burridge, Southampton, Hampshire, SO311BQ, United KingdomThailand Thanon Si Lom 1, Bang Rak, Bangkok 10500, ThailandVictor, United States 7625 Omnitech Place, Victor, NY 14564, United StatesWallingford, United States 50 Barnes Park North, Wallingford, CT 06492, United StatesWeymouth, United Kingdom Waverley House Hampshire Road, Granby Industrial Estate,Weymouth,Whippany, United States 9 Whippany Rd, Whippany, NJ 07981, United StatesWilmington, United States The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Center1209 Orange StreetWimborne, United Kingdom Innovation House, Ferndown Industrial Estate, Wimborne,Dorset, BH21 7SQ, United KingdomYaphank, United States 95 Horseblock Road, P.O. Box 640, Yaphank, NY 11980,United States
17 Deferred tax liabilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

2023 2022$m $mDeferred tax liabilities (384.1) (491.0)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so.
Movement in deferred tax during the year

Property,plant andequip-ment
Intan-gibleassets Deriv-atives

Retire-mentbenefitoblig-ations Shareoptions Other Total$m $m $m $m $m $m $mAt 1 January 2022 - - - - - - -Business combinations (23.3) (579.5) 5.0 1.8 5.8 19.5 (570.7)(Credit)/ Charge to incomestatement (0.1) 19.4 0.1 (2.5) (5.8) 35.6 46.7
Credit to other comprehensiveincome - - - 2.2 - - 2.2
Effect of change in tax rates (0.1) - (0.2) - 0.1 (0.2)Foreign exchange differences 0.2 5.7 0.4 - - 0.7 7.0Reclassification to held forsale 3.7 23.6 - - - - 27.3
At 31 December 2022 (19.6) (530.9) 5.5 1.3 - 56.1 (487.6)Adjustment to businesscombinations - (3.4) - - - - (3.4)
At 31 December 2022(restated) (19.6) (534.3) 5.5 1.3 - 56.1 (491.0)
(Credit)/ Charge to incomestatement 3.6 51.9 (3.0) (10.7) - 51.4 93.2
Credit to other comprehensiveincome - - - 0.6 - - 0.6
Discontinued operation 2.5 29.0 - - - (2.4) 29.1Foreign exchange differences (0.3) (17.7) 0.2 (0.2) - 2.0 (16.0)At 31 December 2023 (13.8) (471.1) 2.7 (9.0) - 107.1 (384.1)
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17 Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets, in excess of offsetting deferred tax liabilities, are recognised for loss carry forwards anddeductible temporary differences to the extent that the utilisation against future taxable profits is probable. Thereare no deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities. UK Deferred tax assets of $23.4m (2022: $2.1m)have not been recognised as their recovery is uncertain.
Unremitted earnings
The unprovided tax on unremitted earnings as at 31 December 2023 is considered to be immaterial (2022:immaterial).
18 Inventories

2023 2022$m $mRaw materials and consumables 85.8 88.1Work in progress 46.1 57.0Finished goods and goods for resale 6.7 5.7138.6 150.8
Included within cost of sales is a charge of $3.5m (2022: $3.4m) related to the write-down of inventoriesto net realisable value and inventories used for internal development.
19 Trade and other receivables

2023 2022$m $mNon-currentContract assets (note 4) 14.9 12.914.9 12.9
CurrentTrade receivables 80.3 140.9Loss allowance against receivables (1.7) (1.8)Trade receivables 78.6 139.1Contract assets (note 4) 101.1 90.4Other receivables 6.0 5.9Accrued income 47.0 11.7Prepayments 33.6 33.6266.3 280.7
Trade receivables do not carry interest.
The ageing profile of trade receivables was as follows:

2023 2022Tradereceivables Lossallowance Total Tradereceivables Lossallowance Total$m $m $m $m $m $mCurrent 52.3 - 52.3 108.7 - 108.71 to 3 months 19.0 - 19.0 23.7 - 23.74 to 6 months 5.0 - 5.0 3.2 - 3.27 to 9 months 1.6 (0.7) 0.9 1.6 - 1.6Over 9months 2.4 (1.0) 1.4 3.7 (1.8) 1.9Total 80.3 (1.7) 78.6 140.9 (1.8) 139.1
The Group makes loss allowances against its trade receivables and amounts receivable from over-time contractcustomers based on expected credit losses at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses based on priorexperience and relevant forward-looking factors.
The Group recognises a loss allowance of 100% against all receivables over a year past due. For amountsreceivable from over-time contract customers, accrued income, and other receivables the expected credit lossallowance is immaterial.
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19 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables was as follows:

2023 2022$m $mAt 1 January (1.8) -Acquired in business combinations - (2.4)Increase in loss allowance for trade receivables regarded as potentiallyuncollectable (1.1) (0.7)Business divestments 0.1 -Reclassification to assets held for sale - 0.9Decrease in loss allowance for trade receivables recovered during the year orprovision utilised 1.1 0.4At 31 December (1.7) (1.8)
Credit risk
Credit risk is defined as the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financialloss to the Group. The Group mitigates this risk of financial loss by only dealing with creditworthy counterparties.While the Group has elements of concentration of credit risk, with exposure to a number of large counterpartiesand customers, the customers are mainly Government agencies or multinational organisations with whom theGroup has long-term business relationships. The Group’s assessment is that credit risk in relation to ‘five-eyes’Government customers and leading defence primes or subcontractors to Governments is extremely low as theprobability of default is not significant, for example the non-current portion of amounts receivable from over-time contract customers. The provision for expected credit losses is immaterial in respect of receivables fromthese customers.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, when appropriate,action is taken to minimise the Group’s credit risk.
The Group is using a non-recourse factoring scheme for certain of its receivables. Receivables subject to thisarrangement are fully derecognised from the Balance Sheet as soon as their acceptance is validated by thefactoring company and all risks and rewards are transferred.
As at 31 December 2023, the balances of derecognised factored receivables of the Group amounted to $33.5m(2022: nil) and they were structured by currency as follows:

2023 2022$m $mUS Dollars 29.6 -GBP 3.9 -33.5 -
20 Cash and cash equivalents/ bank overdrafts

2023 2022$m $m
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated statement of financial position 558.6 168.2Bank overdraft (note 22) (183.4) (29.1)Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 375.2 139.1
Bank overdrafts are netted with cash and cash equivalents because they form an integral part of the Group’scash management within the cash pooling arrangements.
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21 Trade and other payables
2023 2022$m $mCurrentTrade payables (41.9) (54.7)Contract liabilities (note 4) (177.2) (133.2)Other payables (13.9) (16.9)Accruals (101.0) (106.8)Deferred income (13.8) (18.6)(347.8) (330.2)

Non-currentContract liabilities (note 4) (3.4) (3.9)Other payables (20.5) (0.5)Deferred income - (9.4)(23.9) (13.8)
22 Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings

2023 2022$m $mNon-current liabilitiesBank loans (note 27) 1,255.0 1,446.1Related party loans (note 27) 922.7 860.8Lease liabilities 45.4 30.7Government loans (note 28) 10.2 16.92,233.3 2,354.5
Current liabilitiesBank overdrafts 183.4 29.1Bank loans 111.0 38.9Related party loans (note 27) 53.7 41.9Lease liabilities 5.4 10.1Government loans (note 28) 12.1 7.0365.6 127.0
Total borrowings 2,598.9 2,481.5

Bank loans and related party loans
The principal amounts of bank and related party loans outstanding excluding unamortised loan arrangement feesof $90.0m (2022: $100.3m) and accrued interest comprise the following:

2023 2022AgreementDate Maturity Date $m $mFloating rates1st Lien €450m term loan August 2022 August 2029 497.7 481.31st Lien $883.5m term loan August 2022 August 2029 872.5 881.32nd Lien $460m loan notes August 2022 August 2030 460.0 460.0$440m shareholder loan notes August 2022 August 2031 499.9 440.0£190m revolving credit facility August 2022 February 2029 - 149.02,330.1 2,411.6
Floating rate bank loans accrue interest at USD Term SOFR, EURIBOR or other appropriate benchmark plusmargin.
Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and accrue interest at floating rates.
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22 Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)
Reconciliation of movements in net debt
Net debt comprises bank overdrafts; bank, related party and government loans; and lease liabilities less cashand cash equivalents.

$m
Cash andcashequivalents Bankoverdrafts

Liabilities from financing activities

Net debtBank loans
Relatedpartyloans Leaseliabilities GovernmentloansAt 5 August 2021and 31 December2021 (unaudited) - - - - - - -Acquired inbusinesscombination 189.8 (34.6) (132.4) - (45.6) (25.8) (48.6)Net flows cashand cashequivalents andbank overdrafts (16.3) 5.5 - - - - (10.8)New borrowings - - (1,490.6) (900.0) - - (2,390.6)Finance costs ofdebt capitalised - - 63.2 39.8 - - 103.0Repayment ofborrowings - - 134.0 - - - 134.0Amortisation offinance costs ofdebt - - (2.5) (0.6) - - (3.1)Other non-cashmovement - - (34.4) (41.9) (0.5) 0.6 (76.2)Principalpayments onleases - - - - 4.7 - 4.7Foreign exchangedifferences (5.3) - (22.3) - 0.6 1.3 (25.7)At 31 December2022 168.2 (29.1) (1,485.0) (902.7) (40.8) (23.9) (2,313.3)Divested - - - - 6.8 - 6.8Net flows cashand cashequivalents andbank overdrafts 435.3 (147.9) - - - - 287.4New borrowings - - (294.9) - (19.1) (1.5) (315.5)Repayment ofborrowings - - 452.8 - - 7.0 459.8Amortisation offinance costs ofdebt - - (8.3) (2.0) - - (10.3)Other non-cashmovement - - (13.8) (71.7) (3.4) (3.5) (92.4)Principalpayments onleases - - - - 6.6 - 6.6Foreign exchangedifferences (44.9) (6.4) (16.8) - (0.9) (0.4) (69.4)At 31 December2023 558.6 (183.4) (1,366.0) (976.4) (50.8) (22.3) (2,040.3)
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23 Employee benefits
Pension plans
Some UK employees of the Group are members of the Ultra Electronics Limited defined benefit scheme whichwas established on 1 March 1994. The scheme was closed to new members in 2003. The scheme is a final salaryscheme with the majority of members accruing 1/60th of their final pensionable earnings for each year ofpensionable service; however, the scheme was closed to future benefit accrual from 5 April 2016. A definedcontribution plan was introduced for other employees and new joiners in the UK. The latest full actuarial valuationof the defined benefit scheme was carried out as at 5 April 2022. The Group also operates two definedcontribution schemes for overseas employees. In addition to these schemes, the Group’s Tactical CommunicationSystems business based in Montreal, Canada, has three defined benefit schemes.
Defined contribution schemes
The total cost charged to income in respect of the defined contribution schemes was $5.6m.
Defined benefit schemes
All of the defined benefit schemes were actuarially assessed at 31 December 2023 using the projected unitmethod.
In the UK, Ultra Electronics Limited sponsors the Ultra Electronics Pension Scheme, a funded defined benefitpension scheme. The scheme is administered within a trust which is legally separate from the Group. Trusteesare appointed by both the Group and the scheme’s membership and act in the interests of the scheme and allrelevant stakeholders, including the members and the Group. The Trustees are also responsible for theinvestment of the scheme’s assets.
This scheme provides pensions and lump sums to members on retirement and to their dependants on death.
The Trustees are required to use prudent assumptions to value the liabilities and costs of the scheme whereasthe accounting assumptions must be best estimates.
Responsibility for making good any deficit within the scheme lies with the Group and this introduces a numberof risks for the Group. The major risks are: interest rate risk, inflation risk, investment risk and longevity risk.The Group and Trustees are aware of these risks and manage them through appropriate investment and fundingstrategies. The Trustees manage governance and operational risks through a number of internal controls policies,including a risk register.
Investment strategy
The investment strategy is set by the Trustees of the scheme. The investment strategy is targeting a level ofinvestment return above that assumed under the Recovery Plan and slightly higher than the required return toachieve full funding on a self-sufficiency basis by 31 March 2030, with an appropriate level of diversificationacross assets and interest rate and inflation hedging to manage investment risks.
The UK Scheme’s investment strategy is to invest broadly 23% in return-seeking assets and 77% in matchingassets, with the aim of moving to 20% growth and 80% matching by 2030. This strategy reflects the UK Scheme’sliability profile and the Trustees’ and Group’s attitude to risk.
The Trustees’ investment strategy includes investing in liability driven investment (‘LDI’), the value of which willincrease with decreases in interest rates, and will move with inflation expectations. LDI primarily involves theuse of Government bonds and derivatives such as interest rate and inflation swaps. The main risk is that theinvestments held move differently to the liability exposures; this risk is managed by the Trustees, their advisersand the scheme’s LDI manager, who regularly assess the position.
The assets held are also well diversified, across asset classes and investment managers. This reduces the risk ofdrops in the value of individual asset classes, or a particular manager underperforming its investment objectives,having a negative impact on the funding position of the scheme. The investment performance and liabilityexperience are regularly reviewed by the Trustees, and the Trustees will consult with the Group over any changesto the investment strategy.
Rather than holding the underlying assets directly, the scheme invests in pooled investment vehicles managedby professional external investment managers, whom the Trustees have appointed with the help of theirinvestment advisers.
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23 Employee benefits (continued)
GMP equalisation
Following a High Court judgment on 26 October 2018, it became apparent across the UK pension industry thatequalisation was required with respect to Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (‘GMP’s). Scheme benefits earned inthe period 17 May 1990 to 5 April 1997 may be affected by the requirement to equalise GMPs.
It will take a considerable time for trustees and employers to decide on the approach for GMP equalisation,gather data, calculate the new benefits and cost, and ultimately make payments to members. There have beenno material changes in estimates since acquisition.
Valuation
The scheme is subject to regular actuarial valuations, which are usually carried out every three years. The lastactuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 5 April 2022. The next actuarial valuation is due to becarried out with an effective date of 5 April 2025. These actuarial valuations are carried out in accordance withthe requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and so include deliberate margins for prudence. This contrasts withthese accounting disclosures, which are determined using best estimate assumptions.
The results of the 5 April 2022 valuation have been projected to 31 December 2023 by a qualified, independentactuary. The figures in the following disclosure were measured using the projected unit method.

2023 2022UK Canada Total UK Canada Total$m $m $m $m $m $mDefined benefit asset 374.9 7.0 381.9 324.7 8.7 333.4Effect of net asset ceiling (4.5) (0.3) (4.8) (4.3) (0.3) (4.6)Total defined benefit asset 370.4 6.7 377.1 320.4 8.4 328.8
Total defined benefitliability (321.9) (6.7) (328.6) (307.6) (8.4) (316.0)
Net defined benefitasset 48.5 - 48.5 12.8 - 12.8
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23 Employee benefits (continued)
Movement in net defined benefit asset

Defined benefitobligation Fair value of planassets Net defined benefit(liability) / asset2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022$m $m $m $m $m $mAt 1 January (316.0) - 328.8 - 12.8 -Pension scheme assumedon acquisition - (390.2) - 387.3 - (2.9)Interest (income)/cost (15.6) (5.4) 17.4 5.6 1.8 0.2Amounts recognised inprofit or loss (15.6) (5.4) 17.4 5.6 1.8 0.2
Remeasurementsloss/(gain):Actuarial loss (gain)arising from- Changes indemographicassumptions 9.4 6.1 - - 9.4 6.1- Change infinancialassumptions (6.0) 71.6 - - (6.0) 71.6- Experienceadjustment (1.8) (11.9) - - (1.8) (11.9)Return on plan assetsexcluding interest income - - (5.5) (75.3) (5.5) (75.3)Effect of net asset ceiling - - (0.2) (4.6) (0.2) (4.6)Effect of movements inexchange rates (16.9) 5.8 19.6 (6.2) 2.7 (0.4)Amounts recognised inOCI (15.3) 71.6 14.0 (86.1) (1.4) (14.5)
Contributions paid by theemployer - - 35.4 30.0 35.4 30.0Amounts recognised incash flow statement - - 35.4 30.0 35.4 30.0
Benefits paid 16.4 8.0 (16.4) (8.0) - -Liabilities extinguished onsettlements 1.9 - (1.9) - - -Other 18.3 8.0 (18.3) (8.0) - -
At 31 December (328.6) (316.0) 377.1 328.8 48.5 12.8
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23 Employee benefits (continued)
Scheme Assets
The fair value of major categories of scheme assets is as follows:

The scheme’s investments are in pooled funds which are unquoted.
Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

For each of these assumptions there is a range of possible values. Relatively small changes in some of thesevariables can have a significant impact on the level of the total obligation. For the UK scheme, a 0.5% increasein the inflation assumption to 3.55% and a 0.5% decrease in the discount rate to 4.50% would increase thescheme’s liabilities by $14.0m and $21.6m respectively. If the life expectancy of members was to increase byone year, the scheme liabilities would increase by $12.3m.
The average duration of the scheme liabilities is 13 years.
The assumptions used are provided by Willis Towers Watson as Group advisers, and also by reference to theBank of England gilt curve, at a duration appropriate to the scheme’s liabilities.
The key demographic assumption used was in relation to the mortality rates of current and future pensioners.Due to the size of the scheme the mortality rates were based on standard tables, namely:

Current pensioners – males 100% of SAPS S3PMA with CMI 2022 projections and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)Current pensioners – females 97% of SAPS S3PFA with CMI 2022 projections and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)Future pensioners – males 100% of SAPS S3PMA with CMI 2022 projections and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)Future pensioners – females 97% of SAPS S3PFA with CMI 2022 projections and a 1.25% floor from 2013 (UK only)
The mortality assumptions used in the valuation of the UK scheme make appropriate allowance for futureimprovements in longevity and are set out below:

2023 2022Years yearsCurrent pensioners (at 65) – males 22 22Current pensioners (at 65) – females 24 25Future pensioners (at 65) – males 23 23Future pensioners (at 65) – females 26 26
The amount of contributions expected to be paid to defined benefit schemes per annum is $13.3m until March2025, $14.5m until March 2028.

2023 2022$m $mEquities 18.4 15.9Bonds 5.3 4.8Property 54.3 46.8Other assets 1.8 33.9Investment funds:- Absolute return 54.0 30.4- LDI 150.4 105.9- Multi-asset credit 97.7 95.7381.9 333.4

2023 2022UK Canada UK CanadaDiscount rate 4.70% 4.75% 4.95% 5.00%Inflation rate – RPI 3.05% n/a 3.25% n/aInflation rate – CPI 2.55% n/a 2.65% n/aExpected rate of salary increases n/a n/a n/a 3.45%Future pension increases (pre 6/4/08) 2.90% n/a 3.05% n/aFuture pension increases (post 6/4/08) 2.00% n/a 2.00% n/a
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24 Provisions

Warranties
Contract-relatedprovisions Otherprovisions Total$m $m $m $mBalance at 1 January 2022 (unaudited) - - - -Acquired with business combinations 7.2 23.4 23.5 54.1Provisions made during the period 1.2 2.7 0.6 4.5Provisions used during the period (0.7) (9.6) (0.3) (10.6)Provisions reversed during the period (0.7) (1.6) (3.4) (5.7)Foreign exchange differences (0.1) (1.9) (0.3) (2.3)Reclassified to liabilities held for sale (1.3) (0.1) - (1.4)Balance at 31 December 2022 5.6 12.9 20.1 38.6Adjustment to acquired with business combinations - 4.0 - 4.0Balance at 31 December 2022 (restated) 5.6 17.0 20.1 42.7Provisions made during the period 3.3 1.7 7.0 12.0Provisions used during the period (0.2) 0.1 (9.4) (9.5)Provisions reversed during the period (1.0) (5.2) (0.2) (6.4)Foreign exchange differences 0.2 0.9 0.9 2.0Balance at 31 December 2023 7.9 14.5 18.4 40.8

Non-current 1.0 6.9 4.3 12.2Current 4.6 10.1 15.8 30.5Balance at 31 December 2022 5.6 17.0 20.1 42.7
Non-current 2.4 4.7 4.7 11.8Current 5.5 9.8 13.7 29.0Balance at 31 December 2023 7.9 14.5 18.4 40.8

Provision is made for the anticipated cost of repair and rectification of products under warranty, based on knownexposures and historical occurrences. Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when the Group has adetailed formal plan for the restructuring that has been communicated to affected parties.
Warranty provisions are based on an assessment of future claims with reference to past experience. Such costsare generally incurred within two years after delivery.
Contract-related provisions – for example, including provisions for agent fees and costs relating to contractexecution and delivery – are utilised over the period as stated in the contract to which the specific provisionrelates, typically 2-5 years.
Other provisions include reorganisation costs, dilapidation costs and costs in relation to settlement of legalmatters*. Reorganisation costs will be incurred over the period of the reorganisation, which is typically up to twoyears. Dilapidations will be payable at the end of the contracted life, which is up to 15 years.
*Investigations associated with Ultra legacy conduct of business issues are ongoing, and Ultra continues tocooperate with the relevant authorities. Provisions have been booked with respect to these matters where theprovision recognition criteria have been deemed to have been met.
25 Capital and reserves
Ordinary Shares
In thousands of shares 2023 2022At the beginning of the period 2,600 20Issued for cash 1 2,580At 31 December – fully paid 2,601 2,600

2023 2022$m $mAllotted, called up and fully paid2,600,000 (2022: 2,600,000) Ordinary shares of $1 each 2.6 2.6Total 2.6 2.6
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25 Capital and reserves (continued)
Ordinary Shares (continued)
During the year the Company issued 1,000 Ordinary shares with a nominal value of $1 each, settled in cash fortotal consideration of $1.4m (2022: issued 2,580,000 Ordinary shares with a nominal value of $1 each, settledin cash for total consideration of $136.3m). The difference between the nominal value of the shares and thecash received has been recognised within share premium.
Equity preference certificates

2023 2022$m $mIssued and fully paid788,821,659 (2022: 788,821,659) shares of $1each 788.8 788.8
At 1 January 788.8 -Issued in the period - 1,052.2Repaid in the period - (263.4)At 31 December 788.8 788.8

In 2022 the Company issued 1,052,227,317 equity preferred certificates with a nominal value of $1 each withno yield, settled in cash). These certificates are mandatorily redeemable at par after ninety years in August 2112.The certificates are only redeemable by the Company and can be redeemed at par at any time or converted intoconversion shares. In 2022, the Company redeemed 263,405,658 shares at par. In addition, the Companyredeemed 315,529,899 shares in March 2024 for total consideration of $315.5m.
Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising, from the translation of the financialstatements of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s netinvestment in a foreign subsidiary.
Legal reserve
In accordance with Law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies as amended, the Company must allocatea minimum of 5% of the net profit to the legal reserve, until such reserve reaches 10% of the share capital.Distribution of the legal reserve is restricted. The amount allocated to the legal reserve as at 31 December 2023was nil (2022: nil).
Share based compensation
Under the Management Incentive Plan (MIP), shares in the shareholding structure of the Group are granted toManagers of the Group entities to participate in the acquisition of the operating Group along with othershareholders. The scheme was introduced during 2023 and therefore there is no comparative data to present.
The exercise price of the shares is not materially different from the market price of the underlying shares on thedate of grant. The vesting date is the estimated exit event date, i.e. the date when management become entitledto such shares in full.
The Group accounts for the MIP as an equity-settled plan.
No expense was recognized for employee services received during 2023 or 2022 as the Company has determinedthat the subscription value of the shares does not differ materially from their market value.
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26 Notes to the cash flow statement
2023 2022$m $mCashflows from operating activitiesLoss for the year from continuing operations (80.9) (143.6)Adjustments for:Taxation (note 10) (82.0) (50.6)Acquired assets related amortisation and impairment (note 6) 213.0 96.5Acquisition and other and other non-underlying items (note 6) 5.3 50.4Underlying amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) 8.0 3.8Underlying depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 13) 16.4 8.7Underlying depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 14) 9.9 4.4Defined benefit pension scheme funding (note 23) (35.4) (30.0)Finance income (note 7) (34.3) (2.3)Finance expenses (note 8) 257.0 96.0Foreign exchange gains/losses (4.6) 11.7Profit on disposal of businesses, property, plant and equipment (note 9) (195.0) -Write down of inventories (note 18) 3.5 3.4Decrease in provisions (note 24) 0.8 (8.8)Underlying operating cash flow before movements in working capital 81.7 39.6

27 Financial instruments
i) Financial assets
The financial assets of the Group are as follows:

2023 2022$m $mCash and cash equivalents 558.6 168.2Investments in financial assets 1.4 4.5Trade receivables 78.6 139.1Other receivables 6.0 5.9Accrued income 47.0 11.7691.6 329.4
The Board of Managers consider that the carrying amount of all financial assets approximates to their fair value.
Derivative financial instruments and equity investments are measured at fair value through profit and loss. Allother financial assets are measured at amortised cost.
ii) Financial liabilities
The financial liabilities of the Group were as follows:

2023 2022$m $mDerivative financial instruments (4.8) (23.3)Trade payables (41.9) (54.7)Other payables (34.4) (17.4)Accruals (101.0) (106.8)Bank loans and overdrafts (1,549.4) (1,514.1)Related party loans (976.4) (902.7)Lease liabilities (50.8) (40.8)Amounts due to over-time contract customers (180.6) (137.1)Government loans (22.3) (23.9)(2,961.6) (2,820.8)
The Board of Managers consider that the carrying amount for all financial liabilities, except for the bank andrelated party loans, approximates to their fair value. For the bank and related party loans, the derived fair valuehas been determined as $2,342.5m (2022: $2,287.4m) which compares to the carrying amount of $2,342.4m(2022: $2,387.7m). The fair value of the bank loans and overdrafts has been derived from indicative quotes forborrowings of similar amounts, terms and maturity periods and is classified as level 2 (2022: level 2) within thefair value hierarchy.
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
ii) Financial liabilities (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and government loans are measured at fair value through profit and loss. Leaseliabilities are measured in accordance with IFRS 16. All other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
iii) Fair values of financial instruments
The fair value hierarchy is as follows:
 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Listed equity investments are classified as level 1, derivative financial instruments are classified as level 2 andgovernment loans are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Further details on the government loansare set out in note 28.
The derivative financial instruments held by the Group are as follows:

Current (liabilities)/assets Non-current (liabilities)/assets2023 2022 2023 2022$m $m $m $mForeign exchange currency liabilities (4.8) (12.6) (8.5) (10.7)Foreign exchange currency assets 10.8 - 0.3 0.3
iv) Credit risk
The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is considered to be limited because thecounterparties are banks with investment-grade ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. Cash isdeposited across a number of different investment-grade banks in the main territories in which the Group isbased.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses,represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.
Credit risk disclosures for trade receivables are set out in note 19. The Group considers the following asconstituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience indicatesthat financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

 When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or
 Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikelyto pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by theGroup), including historic experience and forward-looking information that is available without unduecost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries inwhich the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration ofvarious external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s coreoperations.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is morethan 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a morelagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
iv) Credit risk (continued)
The table below sets out the credit ratings of the counterparties for the Group’s derivative assets and cash andcash equivalents:

2023 2022Derivativeassets Cash and cashequivalents Derivativeassets Cash and cashequivalents$m $m $m $mAA - 61.7 - 19.9AA- 1.2 41.3 - 57.5A+ 9.9 10.3 - 7.5A - 445.3 - 83.311.1 558.6 - 168.2
v) Liquidity risk
The Group maintains committed banking facilities with core banks to provide prudent levels of borrowingheadroom.
The Group's debt structure was established to fund the acquisition of Ultra in August 2022. The debt structureconsists of a €450m term loan and $883.5m amortising term loan with an expiry date of August 2029, $460mnotes with an expiry date of August 2030 and $440m notes with an expiry date of August 2031. The $460m and$440m notes were provided by the Group's immediate parent company, Cobham Ultra SunCo S.à r.l. The Groupalso has a £190m revolving credit facility, of which £34.8m has been allocated to support bank guaranteeissuance. The remaining balance of the facility of £155.2m is available to be drawn in Sterling, US Dollars,Canadian Dollars, Australian Dollars and Euros.
The term loans and revolving credit facility are secured against certain of the Group entities’ shares, intercompanyreceivables, bank accounts and other assets. The $460m notes are secured over the shares of the Company,and the $440m notes are unsecured within the Group. Interest was charged at 3.75% over the benchmark ratefor the term loans, 7.25% above benchmark for the $460m notes and 9% over benchmark for the $440m notes.
The Group is strongly cash-generative, and the funds generated by operating companies are managed regionallyto fund short-term local working capital requirements. Where additional funding is required, this is providedcentrally through the Group’s committed banking facilities.
The Group, through its Canadian subsidiary Ultra Electronics Tactical Communication Systems (TCS), participatesin two Canadian programmes that provide government support in relation to the development of certain of itsproducts. Further disclosure is provided in note 28.
The following table details the Group’s remaining undiscounted contractual maturity for its financial liabilities andleases.
The contractual maturity of currency derivatives stated below is the gross outflow relating to the derivativeliabilities, per the requirements of IFRS 7 paragraph B11D. To enable readers to understand the overall position,the gross cash inflow associated with these liabilities is also presented.

Within 1year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total2023 $m $m $m $m $mTrade payables (41.9) - - - (41.9)Other payables (13.9) (20.5) - - (34.4)Accruals (101.0) - - - (101.0)Bank overdraft (183.4) - - - (183.4)Bank loans (128.3) (126.8) (375.1) (1,442.2) (2,072.4)Related party loans (59.0) (58.8) (176.6) (2,113.9) (2,408.3)Government loans (10.4) (11.1) (1.9) (1.2) (24.6)Currency derivatives used for hedging –cash outflow (4.8) (1.0) (0.4) (0.2) (6.4)Lease liabilities (9.9) (19.0) (8.0) (16.8) (53.7)At 31 December 2023 (552.6) (237.2) (562.0) (3,574.3) (4,926.1)
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
v) Liquidity risk (continued)

Within 1year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total2022 $m $m $m $m $mTrade payables (54.7) - - - (54.7)Other payables (16.9) (0.5) - - (17.4)Accruals (106.8) - - - (106.8)Bank overdraft (29.1) - - - (29.1)Bank loans (102.9) (98.8) (293.7) (1,663.4) (2,158.8)Related party loans (48.6) (48.7) (145.8) (1,896.5) (2,139.6)Government loans (7.7) (10.2) (12.0) (1.2) (31.1)Currency derivatives used for hedging –cash outflow (12.6) (8.7) (2.2) - (23.5)Lease liabilities (12.6) (10.9) (17.3) (6.4) (47.2)At 31 December 2022 (391.9) (177.8) (471.0) (3,567.5) (4,608.2)
vi) Market risk
Financial risk management
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affectthe Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
Currency risk
The Group uses currency derivatives in the form of forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currencytransaction risk. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Sterling and Canadian Dollars.
At 31 December 2023, the net fair value of the Group’s currency derivatives is estimated to be a liability ofapproximately $2.2m (2022: $23.0m), comprising $11.1m (2022: $0.3m) assets and $13.3m (2022: $23.3m)liabilities. The gain on derivative financial instruments included in the Group’s consolidated income statement forthe period was $17.8m (2022: $0.2m gain).
Sensitivity analysis
The Group’s main sensitivity is to changes in the exchange rate between US Dollars and Sterling. The Group hasestimated the impact on the income statement and equity of a 10% and 25% strengthening or weakening ofaverage actual and transactional currency rates applicable during the year and a 10% and 25% change in theforeign exchange rates applicable for valuing foreign exchange derivative instruments. The analysis covers onlyfinancial assets and liabilities held at the balance sheet date and is made on the basis the net investment hedgeremains effective.

31 December 2023 10% weakeningof US dollar
10%strengthening ofUS dollar 25% weakeningof US dollar

10%strengthening ofUS dollarProfitbeforetax Equity
Profitbeforetax Equity

Profitbeforetax Equity
Profitbeforetax Equity$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $mP&L translation (85.8) - 85.8 - (214.6) - 214.6 -Foreign exchange derivatives 12.3 - (12.3) - 30.7 - (30.7) -(73.5) - 73.5 - (183.9) - 183.9 -

31 December 2022 10% weakening ofUS dollar 10% strengtheningof US dollar 25% weakening ofUS dollar 10% strengtheningof US dollarProfitbeforetax Equity
Profitbeforetax Equity

Profitbeforetax Equity
Profitbeforetax Equity$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $mP&L translation 8.4 - (8.4) - 21.0 - (21.0) -Foreign exchange derivatives 26.1 - (26.1) - 65.1 - (65.1) -34.5 - (34.5) - 86.1 - (86.1) -
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
vi) Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk
All of the Group's loans are subject to floating interest rates and are repayable between 2029 and 2031.
Sensitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would have increased (decreased) equityand profit or loss by $23.0m (2022: $10.0m). This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balancesheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant and considersthe effect of financial instruments with variable interest rates, financial instrument at fair value through profit orloss with fixed interest rates and the fixed rate element of interest rate swaps.
Capital management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concernswhile maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capitalstructure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 22, cash and cashequivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves andretained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The Group is not subject toexternally imposed capital requirements.
28 Government grants and loans
The Group, through its Canadian subsidiaries Ultra Electronics Tactical Communication Systems (“TCS”) and UltraElectronics Maritime Systems (“UEMS”), participates in three Canadian programmes that provide Governmentsupport in relation to the development of certain of its products.
Under the Strategic Aerospace and Defence Initiative (“SADI”), the Canadian Federal Government provides along-term funding arrangement in respect of certain eligible research and development project costs. Under thisarrangement:
 C$31.8m was provided to TCS and will be reimbursed over the period to 2032.
 Up to C$8.2m will be provided to UEMS up to the end of 2023 and reimbursed over the period 2025 to2039. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest has been calculated as the difference between theproceeds received and the fair value of the loans and has been credited to profit in the year. As at 31December 2023, C$6.4m had been received by UEMS.
The fair value of the loans has been calculated using a market interest rate for a similar instrument. The valuationused the discounted cash flow method and considered the value of expected payments using a risk-adjusteddiscount rate; the discount rate used was 18% for TCS and 15% for UEMS.
For TCS, the amount repayable depends on future revenue growth of the TCS business to 2032 and will be upto 1.5x the amounts received up to a maximum of C$47.7m. C$12.7m has been repaid to date, with a furtherC$11.3m repaid in early 2024.
For UEMS, the amount repayable depends on future revenue growth of the UEMS business from 2025 to 2039and will be between 1.0x and 1.5x the amounts received up until the end of the funding period.
The significant unobservable inputs for this Level 3 financial instrument are: (i) whether, and by how much, TCSand UEMS revenues will grow during the periods to 2032 and 2039 respectively, and (ii) the specific years inwhich revenue will grow. There are significant inherent uncertainties in management’s ability to forecast revenueover future years, particularly in later years. If the forecast revenue growth occurs in earlier years than envisaged,then the net present value of the liability will increase; if the revenue growth increases were to occur one yearearlier than assumed in the valuation model, then the net present value of the liability as at 31 December 2023would increase by C$2.2m.
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28 Government grants and loans (continued)
Amounts recognised in the financial statements in respect of these programmes were as follows:

2023 2022$m $mAt the beginning of the period (23.9) -Recognised on acquisition of Ultra - (25.7)Contributions (1.5) -Repayments 7.1 -Net change in fair value to profit and loss (FVTPL) (3.6) 0.6Foreign exchange differences (0.4) 1.2At 31 December (22.3) (23.9)
The government grant credited to the consolidated income statement in the period was $nil (2022: $nil).
29 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are potential future cash outflows which are either not probable or cannot be measuredreliably or will be confirmed only by the occurrence of an uncertain future event not wholly within the control ofthe Group.
The Group has entered into a number of guarantee and performance bond arrangements in the normal courseof business, totalling $40.0m (2022: $50.7m).
30 Capital commitments
There were no (2022: no) financial commitments (i.e. certain contractual requirements to make cash paymentsin the future) that are not recorded within our balance sheet as the contract is not yet due for delivery as at 31December 2023.
31 Related parties
During the year, Cobham Ultra SunCo S.à r.l., the Group's immediate parent company provided $499.9m (2022:$440.0m) (PIK) and $460.0m (2022: $460.0m) (SUN) loan notes to the Group and charged the Group $124.2m(2022: $42.0m) interest on these loan notes. At the year end, the total of $53.7m (2022: $42.0m) interest onloan notes is owed by the Group to Cobham Ultra SunCo S.à r.l.. For further detail on the related party loans,please refer to note 22.
Loan arrangement fees totalling $39.8m were paid to related parties in 2022 in relation to the PIK and SUN debtissued by the Group.
In March 2023, the Group divested the US Specialist RF business (“Herley”) to CAES Systems Holdings LLC, a100% owned subsidiary of AI Convoy (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. For further detail, please refer to note 9.
Transactions with key management personnel
During the year, no (2022: no) remuneration was paid to key management personnel from within this Groupand therefore no key management personnel compensation is disclosable.
32 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking
The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Cobham Ultra SunCo S.à r.l., a company incorporated inLuxembourg. The ultimate controlling party is Advent International Corporation, a global private equity investor.
At 31 December 2022, Cobham Ultra SeniorCo S.à r.l., was the holding Company of the largest and smallestgroup for which consolidated financial statements were prepared.
33 Subsequent events
The Company redeemed 315,529,899 equity preferred certificates in March 2024 for total consideration of$315.5m.
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